
Re: OB Planning Board Packets and Correspondence

T E Hopkins <ewellhopkins@mac.com>
Sat 4/18/2020 12>03 PM
To:  Chris Huntress <chris@huntressassociates.com>; kkirk.smi@gmail.com <kkirk.smi@gmail.com>
Cc:  Oak Bluffs Planning Board <planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov>; Matthew D'Andrea <mdandrea@mvyps.org>;
Smith Richie <rsmith@mvyps.org>

Well and Good, Chris

Chairperson Kirk - this situation highlights several concerns which I would like to discuss with 
you. When can we talk?

Ewell

Ewell Hopkins
Oak Bluffs Planning Board - Chairperson
1.508.560.7227
http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board

Please remember when writing or responding that the Secretary of State's Office has determined that e-mail is a public 
record.
 
However,  the information contained in this e-mail and in the accompanying attachments is intended solely for the use of the 
individual/entity named above. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify us.

On Apr 18, 2020, at 7>21 AM, Chris Huntress <chris@huntressassociates.com> 
wrote:

Mr.	Hopkins,	my	request	was	made	because	your	April	2,	2020	email	to	Adam	Turner	appeared	

to	be	cut	short.	A	correspondence	to	the	MVC,	dated	February	21st,	was	inserted	between	

page	one	and	page	two	of	your	4/2	email	and	I	misunderstood	it’s	context.		All	I	was	looking	for	

was	the	balance	of	the	email,	which	I	now	understand	is	included	in	the	packet.	I	apologize	for	

the	confusion,	and	I	have	what	I	need	at	this	Kme.	Thanks	for	your	quick	response.

	

Chris

Christian C. Huntress, RLA
President
 
HUNTRESS Sports
17 Tewksbury Street
Andover, MA 01810
c: 978.758.6290
p. 978.470.8882
f. 978.4708890
 
www.huntressassociates.com

http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board
mailto:chris@huntressassociates.com
http://www.huntressassociates.com/


www.sportsfieldaerials.com
 
	

	

	

	

	

From:	T	E	Hopkins	<ewellhopkins@mac.com>	

Sent:	Saturday,	April	18,	2020	3:00	AM
To:	Chris	Huntress	<chris@huntressassociates.com>

Cc:	Oak	Bluffs	Planning	Board	<planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov>;	turner@mvcommission.org;	

MaYhew	D'Andrea	<mdandrea@mvyps.org>;	kkirk.smi@gmail.com;	Smith	Richie	

<rsmith@mvyps.org>

Subject:	Re:	OB	Planning	Board	Packets	and	Correspondence
	

Hello,	Chris

	

Such	an	open	ended	modificaKon	to	your	original	request,	dated	April	9th	2020,	will	require	a	

great	deal	of	effort	and	research.

	

I	will	consult	our	town	aYorney	to	discuss	how	to	formally	respond.	Please	work	through	me	

directly	on	this	new	request	going	forward.	

	

We	have	responded	in	full	to	your	original	request.	If	you	do	not	agree,	please	have	your	

aYorney	contact	me.	A	more	formalized	approach	to	your	freedom	of	informaKon	requests	

may	be	in	order.

	

The	Oak	Bluffs	Planning	Board	will	have	to	research	over	four	years	of	materials	to	comply	to	

this	new	request.

	

If	the	town	is	asked	to	engage	in	such	open-ended	requests	the	costs	will	have	to	be	

understood	by	all.

	

Expect	to	hear	back	from	me	directly	once	I	have	researched	this	maYer	in	more	detail.	

OperaKng	under	current	state	guidelines	the	Kmeframe	we	are	working	under	may	be	longer	

than	otherwise	expected.

	

The	town	has	done	it	best	to	honor	the	wishes	of	the	applicant	during	these	challenging	Kmes,	

I	must	say	I’m	shocked	and	surprised	that	the	applicant	would	ask	the	town	to	spend	funds	and	

resources	on	such	a	request.

	

I	expect	to	hear	directly	from	Chairperson	Kirk	as	to	why	she	supports	the	Kming	of	this	

request	as	we	find	ourselves	engaged	in	a	global	crisis.

	

I	am	very	disappointed.

	

Ewell

	

	

Ewell Hopkins

http://www.sportsfieldaerials.com/
mailto:ewellhopkins@mac.com
mailto:chris@huntressassociates.com
mailto:planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:turner@mvcommission.org
mailto:mdandrea@mvyps.org
mailto:kkirk.smi@gmail.com
mailto:rsmith@mvyps.org


Oak Bluffs Planning Board - Chairperson
1.508.560.7227
http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board
 
Please remember when writing or responding that the Secretary of State's Office has determined that e-mail 
is a public record.
 
However,  the information contained in this e-mail and in the accompanying attachments is intended solely 
for the use of the individual/entity named above. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify us.
	

	

On	Apr	17,	2020,	at	2:53	PM,	Chris	Huntress	<chris@huntressassociates.com>	

wrote:

	

Thanks	Kim,	I	appreciate	the	quick	reply.	In	my	original	request	I	asked	for	“all	
correspondence	between	the	OBPB	and	MVC	regarding	the	MVRPS	AthleBc	
Field	ApplicaBon”.	I	would	expect	this	would	include	all	wriYen	leYers	and	emails	

between	the	OBPB	Chair	and	any	MVC	staff	or	individual	board	members.	Please	

confirm	that	this	packet	includes	all	such	correspondence.

	

Thanks

	

Chris

Christian C. Huntress, RLA
President
 
HUNTRESS Sports
17 Tewksbury Street
Andover, MA 01810
c: 978.758.6290
p. 978.470.8882
f. 978.4708890
 
www.huntressassociates.com
www.sportsfieldaerials.com
 
	

	

	

From:	Oak	Bluffs	Planning	Board	<planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov>	

Sent:	Friday,	April	17,	2020	1:55	PM
To:	Chris	Huntress	<chris@huntressassociates.com>

Cc:	Adam	Turner	<turner@mvcommission.org>;	Ewell	Hopkins	

(ewellhopkins@mac.com)	<ewellhopkins@mac.com>

Subject:	Re:	OB	Planning	Board	Packets	and	Correspondence
	

Hi	Chris,

http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board
mailto:chris@huntressassociates.com
http://www.huntressassociates.com/
http://www.sportsfieldaerials.com/
mailto:planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:chris@huntressassociates.com
mailto:turner@mvcommission.org
mailto:ewellhopkins@mac.com
mailto:ewellhopkins@mac.com


	

AYached	please	find	the	OBPB's	board	packet	from	April	9,	2019	per	your	

public	records	request.	

	

All	best,

	

Kim Leaird
Administrator to the Planning Board of Oak Bluffs
Oak Bluffs Town Hall
56 School St.
Oak Bluffs, MA 02557
(508) 693-3554 x154
	

	

From:	Chris	Huntress	<chris@huntressassociates.com>

Sent:	Friday,	April	17,	2020	10:54	AM
To:	Oak	Bluffs	Planning	Board	<planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov>

Cc:	Sullivan,	Joseph	<JSullivan@chacompanies.com>;	MaYhew	D'Andrea	

<mdandrea@mvyps.org>;	Kim	Kirk	<kkirk.smi@gmail.com>;	Smith	Richie	

<rsmith@mvyps.org>

Subject:	RE:	OB	Planning	Board	Packets	and	Correspondence
	

Kim,	just	checking	in	on	the	status	of	my	request.	Email	copies	are	fine	if	that	is	

easier	on	your	end.

Thanks,	and	stay	safe.

	

Chris

Christian C. Huntress, RLA
President
 
HUNTRESS Sports
17 Tewksbury Street
Andover, MA 01810
c: 978.758.6290
p. 978.470.8882
f. 978.4708890
 
www.huntressassociates.com
www.sportsfieldaerials.com
 
	

	

	

From:	Oak	Bluffs	Planning	Board	<planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov>	

Sent:	Friday,	April	10,	2020	9:06	AM
To:	Chris	Huntress	<chris@huntressassociates.com>

Subject:	Re:	OB	Planning	Board	Packets	and	Correspondence
	

mailto:chris@huntressassociates.com
mailto:planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:JSullivan@chacompanies.com
mailto:mdandrea@mvyps.org
mailto:kkirk.smi@gmail.com
mailto:rsmith@mvyps.org
http://www.huntressassociates.com/
http://www.sportsfieldaerials.com/
mailto:planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:chris@huntressassociates.com


Hi	Chris,	

	

Your	public	records	request	is	received.	

	

All	best,

	

Kim Leaird
Administrator to the Planning Board of Oak Bluffs
Oak Bluffs Town Hall
56 School St.
Oak Bluffs, MA 02557
(508) 693-3554 x154
	

	

From:	Chris	Huntress	<chris@huntressassociates.com>

Sent:	Thursday,	April	9,	2020	6:03	PM
To:	Oak	Bluffs	Planning	Board	<planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov>

Cc:	MaYhew	D'Andrea	<mdandrea@mvyps.org>;	Peter	C.	Sumners	

<psumners@mlmlawfirm.com>;	Sullivan,	Joseph	

<JSullivan@chacompanies.com>;	Richard	Smith	<rsmith@mvyps.org>;	Kim	Kirk	

<kkirk.smi@gmail.com>

Subject:	OB	Planning	Board	Packets	and	Correspondence
	

Kim,	I	would	like	to	request	a	copy	of	the	Planning	Board	packet	prepared	for	

April	9th	meeKng,	including	all	correspondence	between	the	OBPB	and	MVC	

regarding	the	MVRPS	AthleKc	Field	ApplicaKon.

I	would	expect	this	would	include	all	wriYen	leYers	and	emails	that	were	

referenced	by	the	chair	this	evening.

	

Thanks

	

Chris

Christian C. Huntress, RLA
President
 
HUNTRESS Sports
17 Tewksbury Street
Andover, MA 01810
c: 978.758.6290
p. 978.470.8882
f. 978.4708890
 
www.huntressassociates.com
www.sportsfieldaerials.com

mailto:chris@huntressassociates.com
mailto:planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:mdandrea@mvyps.org
mailto:psumners@mlmlawfirm.com
mailto:JSullivan@chacompanies.com
mailto:rsmith@mvyps.org
mailto:kkirk.smi@gmail.com
http://www.huntressassociates.com/
http://www.sportsfieldaerials.com/


 

 

 TOWN OF OAK BLUFFS 
NOTICE OF MEETING FOR ALL TOWN BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

In accordance with M.G.L. c30A.ss 18-25 
 

 NAME OF BOARD OR COMMITTEE: TOWN PLANNING BOARD 
 
 DATE & TIME OF MEETING: Thursday, April 9, 2020 at 5:00 pm 
 
 PLACE OF MEETING: Virtual Meeting via Zoom 
  To Join Zoom Meeting: 
  Meeting ID #: 724 828 397 
  Password: 519984 

https://oakbluffs.zoom.us/j/724828397?pwd=NTFkc1E0QTVybXR1V0wraUJ1TkI2QT09 
  or call in number: 646-558-8656 
  ** You do NOT need a Zoom account to join** 

     
___________________________________      Kim Leaird___________________ 
Date and time received by Town Clerk's Office      Clerk or Board member posting notice 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA
 

Approval of Minutes – (March 26, 2020) 

Discussion of APA/MAPD Seminar on the March 27, 2020 webinar “Keeping Planning Responsive  
to Covid-19” — Webinar presented by the APA-MA (American Planning Association/Massachusetts and 
the Mass. Association of Planning Directors). Webinar can be accessed here: https://www.apa-ma.org 
 
Discussion of Subcommittee Participation by Members of the Planning Board 

Board Updates 
 

Notice of Chairperson’s Correspondence and Activities – The listing of matters are those reasonably 
anticipated by the Chairperson which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all items may in fact be 
discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by 
law. Agenda order may be amended at the discretion of the Chair/Board. 
 



	
	

Planning	Board	/	March	26,	2020	 	 1	

OAK	BLUFFS	PLANNING	BOARD	
Meeting Minutes 
 
THURSDAY, MARCH 26, 2020 
5:00 p.m. | Virtual Zoom Meeting 
 

 

Members in Attendance: Ewell Hopkins, Erik Albert, Bill Cleary, Mark Crossland, JoJo Lambert 

Members Absent:  

Staff in Attendance:  Kim Leaird (Administrator) 

Attendees: Chris Huntress, Eric Peters, Marilyn Miller, Adam Wilson, Peter Sumners 

 

Chairperson Hopkins opened the meeting at 5:04 p.m.  

Approval	of	Minutes	
Ewell Hopkins – Chairperson: I’d like to bring the Planning Board meeting to order at 5:04pm on March 
26. This is our first virtual meeting. First on the agenda is the approval of the minutes. Are there any 
questions or additions or subtraction by board members. 
 
Bill Cleary: One thing I noticed on page three. (Incomplete sentence; Kim noted it) 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Scrolling through and that was pretty much it. Any other comments or questions? 
Hearing none, would someone like to make a motion. 
 
Mark Crossland: I make a motion to approve [March 26, 2020 meeting minutes]. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Okay, seconded by Bill Cleary. All in favor? Passes unanimously. 

Public	Hearing	on	Proposed	Amendments	to	Solar	Bylaw	(SEE:	https://tinyurl.com/sjoobtn)	
Discussion to amend Section 12.0 Solar Energy Systems to include Use of Large-Scale Ground-Mounted 
Solar Photovoltaic Installations as the town seeks Green Community Designation. This bylaw proposal will 
be considered on the 2020 Annual Town Meeting Warrant. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Next on the agenda is Bill Cleary giving us an update on the public hearing and proposed 
amendments to the solar bylaw. 

Bill Cleary: As part of the Master Plan process adopted by the voters at last year’s Town meeting it was 
recommended in section 6.2 that Oak Bluffs become a greener community. I was given a task by the 
Planning Board [to help the] town receive the Green Community designation through the state — a 
program which began in 2008. The last several months, I’ve been working with a group of volunteers 
from the Energy Committee to fulfill the five criteria to receive the designation. The program benefits to 
the residents include cutting municipal energy costs, reducing greenhouse gas emissions, promoting 
energy efficient construction and fostering renewable or clean energy technology. 
 

	



	
	

Planning	Board	/	March	26,	2020	 	 2	

If we receive the designation we receive grant money estimated at $140,000 from the state to make 
improvements to our infrastructure, to reduce our energy consumption by 20% over the next five years. 
Once this is achieved, we can apply for more grant money to keep moving in a positive direction. 
 
The bylaw [amendment] being introduced today is for large-scale, ground-mounted, solar photovoltaic 
installation systems which is needed to achieve Criterion one [for] as of right zoning for renewable 
energy. 
 
If I may introduce some clarification before we take on any questions, the bylaw is site-specific to the 
Town landfill site only and any similar installations at another location would be handled by special 
permit — which is currently how it is being handled. 
 
This bylaw does not impact or address residential systems. There is a bylaw in place for residential solar 
needs. The town owns and manages the site. An agreement or lease would have to be arranged with the 
Town for installation of a system. If that was achieved, the solar bylaw would be in place, assuming it 
was voted through, the site would be designated and Criterion 2, which is an expedited permitting process 
within one year from application, would come into play. 
 
The committee is asking for your support to vote yes on this bylaw amendment at Town meeting which 
will provide us with an important step for achieving the Green Community designation through the state 
as well as fulfilling an important element of the Master Plan. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: That’s great. What do you need from the board at this point? 
 
Bill Cleary: At this point, any questions the board may have on the bylaw. It has been introduced and on 
the website for almost a month now, I believe. If there are any public questions. I tried to address any that 
the biggest question I’ve gotten in this regard from our public outreach sessions with my comments 
toward the end.  
 
Ewell Hopkins: So let me start off by asking before I go to the board members are there any members of 
the public that have any questions about this bylaw as it’s written before I moved to the board members 
themselves. 
 
Okay, just want to give enough time to make sure someone’s not having technical difficulty. Marilyn 
Miller…? 
 
Marilyn Miller: Nope, I’m behind Bill 1,000%. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Okay. I’m not hearing any comments from the board. Let me go through each board 
member on the record, Erik, do you have any questions about this bylaw as it is stated. 
 
Erik Albert: No, I just want to say great work. Bravo. 
 
JoJo Lambert: I think it’s fine and I commend Bill as well. He’s done a great job. 
 
Mark Crossland: Sounds good to me. Good job, Bill. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: I am comfortable with the wording, the re-numbering was a big effort on the part of Bill 
and Kim at the 11th hour to pull this off. I’ll bring the public off mute… [any comments? none] 
 



	
	

Planning	Board	/	March	26,	2020	 	 3	

I’ll bring the public session to a close. If there are no other comments, I ask for an adoption of the bylaw 
12.0 as written [with proposed amendments], is that motion ready to be made by board number? 
 
Mark Crossland: [made a motion] Yes.  
 
JoJo Lambert: Seconded. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: All are in favor. 
 
Bill Cleary: Passes unanimously. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Congratulations on this great work – once we get to Town meeting we have something to 
tell the voters. Really excited about this and what it represents in terms of the priorities in the direction of 
the town. So job well done on your part, Bill. 

Office	/	Department	Procedures	during	Covid-19	Emergency	
Ewell Hopkins: Next, I wanted to have a discussion so that the board is up to speed on the work that Kim 
and I are doing basically to keep the lights on during this shutdown … So at this point, Kim I wanted you 
to kind of walk through how you’re working and how the board can be in touch with you. 
 
[She is] exclusively [working from home], she will not be in the office. And I just want to make sure that 
any questions the board has about how that is handled are cleared up here in a public meeting. 
 
Kim Leaird: Sure. I have a full [office] setup at home. I have access to my work email I have access to 
phone messages. So if someone calls into the office I immediately get an email alert that I have a 
voicemail. We’ve had one applicant who needed to get [application] stamped at Town Hall and I’ve 
worked with Colleen to make that happen (the applicant made an appointment to get [application] 
stamped. Colleen was then able to scan and forward application to me). 
 
I have been working on the website at home, but I have all of your phone numbers and I will forward to 
you my cell so that if you need a call me directly, you can do that. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: What’s important for the board to understand is, we’re not at jeopardy of any constructive 
approvals based on delays that we might experience. So there are no applications … where the clock is 
ticking per se, that we have to worry about. As you know, constructive approvals are if we don’t make a 
deadline. There are circumstances where an applicant’s application is approved automatically — that’s 
my biggest concern right now from a logistics point of view. And we’re not at jeopardy of that in any 
respect.  
 
Additionally, I don’t suspect we’ll miss any meetings. I have been meeting with a few potential and new 
applicants providing them guidance and direction remotely, so I think we’re in good shape.  

Discussion	of	Planning	Board	Roles	and	Duties	–	Materials	and	training	resources	
Ewell Hopkins: Kim put together a list of resources because the Citizens Planner conference at Holy 
Cross was canceled this year. It is a comprehensive [list] overview of roles and responsibilities of 
planning board members. I know in recent applications [in front of the board] there’s been some question 
about what our responsibilities are and how does that pertain to the responsibilities of the Commission 
versus the town planning board. 
 



	
	

Planning	Board	/	March	26,	2020	 	 4	

So I wanted to ask everyone — are there any high level questions that people have that we can address as 
a group and maybe, if anyone wants to schedule any one-on-one time with me to go over any of the 
particular areas, we might talk about that now as well, which would not be a violation of Open Meeting 
Law. 
 
JoJo Lambert: I wanted to do the Citizen Planners online training, maybe all three. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: One thing that I would encourage board members to look at is the Hamilton, Mass. roles 
and responsibilities document. I think it is really good as well as the Berkshire’s Resource book at giving 
an overview. The others get into a lot of particular detail that might be subject matter specific.  
 
I did want to underscore that the American Planner Association sessions and links have a fee and we have 
a budget which will cover that. So if anyone wants to take any of those classes, feel free to do that. 
 
I think it’s important in our circumstance where we have authority that’s separate and distinct from the 
Commission that we know where our authority starts and stops.  
 
Bill Cleary: As far as time management, would it be useful to take all of these classes all three that JoJo 
mentioned, or is there anything repetitive there. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: I don’t think anything is repetitive from a priority perspective. I would talk to Kim a little 
bit about where you might think your knowledge is deficient and then prioritize. I think if you read the 
Planning Board resource books from those two towns you’ll get a really good overview.  
 
And then the other documents – writing a defensible decision or a defendable decision is not something 
you really need to spend a lot of time on. It would be Kim and my responsibilities to do. Special permits 
and variances if we’re not looking at any particularly I would just file that and do it when it comes up. 
 
If we were on the other side of Lagoon Ridge, as an example, I would have said it would be good to read 
that. 
 
Erik Albert: Did anyone get these to work because I tried to do all three. And when I hit submit, it would 
just spin [and not complete registration]. I tried it several times. 
 
Kim Leaird: Sometimes browsers are tricky. If you have another or alternate browser, try opening it in a 
different browser. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: And then also, if that doesn’t work, [Kim] can register Erik and send him the credentials. 
 
This is exactly what I had hoped for — it’s hard to get off island and get to training and I wanted to have 
this kind of document we can refer back to I would encourage you all to save this these links will be 
really helpful down the road as well. 
 

Board	Updates	
Ewell Hopkins: I am going to move on to some of my update. I want to do my updates first before I go to 
your updates and then we’ll wrap up this meeting. 
 
Not on the agenda today is [the high school athletic fields]. I spoke to the assistant superintendent of 
schools and received a request from their project representative [Chris Huntress] that we not proceed with 



	
	

Planning	Board	/	March	26,	2020	 	 5	

them on the agenda this week. So the reason why the high school is not on the agenda is per the 
applicant’s request. Obviously, with everything going on, I felt that was a reasonable request. We will 
resume at a later date, but in your packet, you’ll see the referral. 
 
The second thing in the packet that I wanted to bring to your attention – and Eric Peters is on the line – is 
that the Lagoon Ridge LLC has requested an extension of their special permit which prior to the COVID-
19 outbreak I was inclined to support and now, I think it’s an absolute no brainer. They were coming up 
on a deadline that would make the task at hand. I believe unnecessarily challenging the move forward. So 
they have formally requested an extension that has been received and stamped by the clerk’s office and 
the Planning Board office. We’ve received their payment for that extension. 
 
I’m very comfortable with where we are. I wanted to bring it to your attention, as you know, as I 
mentioned in the last meeting. We are talking to the current owners of the property and a potential buyer 
of the property that is looking to move forward with the application and we hope to have a presentation 
for the full board in the near future, once we get behind some of the uncertainty that’s going on in the 
world today. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Kim, do you have any points that you want to bring up about this? 
 
Kim Leaird: No, only that I had looked at our bylaws, and I noted that the Planning Board can extend a 
special permit [beyond two years] for good cause. And I believe Eric had laid out in his letter good cause 
— but that’s not up for me to decide. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Yes and I don’t see the need for a board vote. There’s nowhere I’ve seen that. So I’ve 
actually granted that extension based on the rationale in that letter. If any board members have any 
questions basically now’s the time to ask about them, or we’ll move on. 
 
JoJo Lambert: Ewell, when you said there’s a buyer was that the gentleman that came in quite a few 
months ago that talked about Lagoon Ridge? 
 
Ewell Hopkins: No, you have you have not met the potential buyers and that deal has not been 
consummated yet. You have met the legal counsel representing the heirs of Davio Danielson, his name is 
Eric Peters, he is on the line and he has been performing the role of agent and representative for the 
property and its current state. 
 
In the spirit of constituent services and helping people facilitate through the process. I have had the  
opportunity to answer questions about the potential direction that the current owner and potential buyer 
are [thinking about] making sure that the process is as clear and as straightforward as possible for them. I 
have no red flags at all right now. There’s been no commitments obviously made and I look forward to 
their presentation to the full board which will be coming but is not scheduled at this point. 
 
Mark Crossland: All the conditions we put on this project remain the same for two years? 
 
Ewell Hopkins: There will be a request for some modifications. I believe that the modifications are 
worthy of consideration and seem very reasonable. But that will be a decision for the full board. I will 
obviously make recommendations, we will then discuss in open session and then vote on it as a board, but 
it is not starting the process over by any means. And it would be honoring the special permit granted 
currently and most likely with some modification. 
 
Bill Cleary: So there are no modifications with this current extension.  
 



	
	

Planning	Board	/	March	26,	2020	 	 6	

Ewell Hopkins: Clearly, saying that there will be no triggers invoked based on elapsed time and with any 
special permit if no reasonable progress has been made or circumstances to explain why the whole 
decision can be void and the process would have to start over. In this situation I think there are numerous 
reasons why an extension is warranted and therefore granted. But moving forward with modification to if 
any is for the full board to hear discuss and then vote on. 
 
Mark Crossland: So it would be a public hearing if they want to make any modifications. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Everything we do is —we don’t do anything outside of public meeting. I will meet with 
and speak to them and then report in the next meeting all of my conversations but we make no decisions 
outside of public meeting. 
 
Erik Albert: You know, I understand this project has been through a lot and the family’s been through a 
lot. People have told me personally that working with the Planning Board in Oak Bluffs has been very 
smooth and easy, and I think that’s important. I think this is a fine example of that.  
 
Ewell Hopkins: Eric Peters, you’re on the line. I suspect there’s nothing you need to say but I wanted to 
give you an opportunity. 
 
Eric Peters: Thank you all – we will be in touch, but I don’t know that I have anything to add at this very 
moment. Thank you. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: And then this is all I’m scrolling all of the paperwork for [this] project (Lagoon Ridge) 
which Kim has on file and is in all of your packets.  
 
Additionally, in the same spirit of subcommittee advancement, Mark Crossland did a major "cross the T" 
this week as well in getting the final RKG feasibility report completed for the property abutting the ice 
rink and behind the YMCA. That report is on our website. I put it in conjunction with all of the other 
planning efforts that we’re doing in the Southern Tier. So if you go on to the website, you’ll see ‘Southern 
RKG report. 
 
Mark, do you want to speak about RKG report at all during my update at this point? 
 
Mark Crossland: No, I’d rather let everybody just read it first. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Yes, it’s very dense. It’s very long, and it speaks to the feasibility of significant  
development in that part of town, and I would encourage everyone to read it through. Mark, is there a 
formal acceptance of the report that we have to vote on or is this the completed report? 
 
Mark Crossland: The Planning Board has to vote on it and submit to the Selectmen. 
 
Bill Cleary: That was my understanding from day one. 
 
Mark Crossland: In a nutshell, there’s are three different phases. Phase one would be the initial phase. 
Phase two would come a little bit later. Read the whole report to see what I’m talking about. 
 
Bill Cleary: Was there are a number of units decided on Mark?  
 
Mark Crossland: Phase one is much less — like 15 units I believe, then in phase two incorporates a septic 
treatment plan which will allow us to do much more. But, you know, initially about shelling out a lot of 
money. Phase one is all we can start with I believe that that will be up to the planning board as well. 



	
	

Planning	Board	/	March	26,	2020	 	 7	

 
Ewell Hopkins: Okay. All right – that’s what I have for my report. Things aren’t coming out of the 
Commission right now.They’re officially, I won’t say shut down, but I don’t think they’re issuing 
decisions. We have a couple of applications there now and I will be getting an update from them as soon 
as I can. Let me go around the horn now … Let’s start with you, Bill. You’re at the top of the list. Do you 
have any additional updates, you want to make? 
 
Bill Cleary: Well, my only question is, do we have a tentative date for Town Meeting right now because 
I’d like to do more public outreach on the Green Community designation, but I’m not sure how that’s 
going to work out in the current climate 
 
Ewell Hopkins: I will confirm that and send you an email unless someone else on the line, read the same 
email.  I’ll get back to you on that one bill. No worries. 
 
Erik Albert: [no updates]. 
 
JoJo Lambert: [no updates]. 
 
Mark Crossland: [no updates]. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Before we close, any public comment or questions from those on the line? So either Peter 
Sumners or Chris Huntress or Adam Wilson will have to come off mute if you want to say anything. 
 
Christian Huntress: I’m all set. Thank you.  
 
Eric Peters: I’m all set. Thank you. 
 
AWilson: Okay, thank you. 
 

Adjourn		
 
Ewell Hopkins: Hearing no other comments, is there a motion to adjourn. 
 
Mark Crossland: I make a motion. 
 
JoJo Lambert: Seconded. 
 
Ewell Hopkins: Okay. All in favor. 
  
Meeting was adjourned at 5:35 p.m. 

*** 

Minutes approved xxx  

Documents on File:   Agenda; Board packet; zoom video 



Screenshots	from	APA	Webinar		
March	27,	2020	



kim
Highlight







kim
Highlight

kim
Highlight

kim
Highlight





kim
Highlight



kim
Highlight

kim
Highlight



kim
Highlight



kim
Highlight

kim
Highlight

kim
Highlight

kim
Highlight



kim
Highlight

kim
Highlight





kim
Highlight

kim
Highlight

kim
Highlight



 
 
 
 
 
 

Legislation passed  
on April 3, 2020 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 617.556.0007  |  1.800.548.3522  |  www.k-plaw.com  |  ©2020 KP Law, P.C. 

 

Land Use Permitting Deadline Extensions:  

Municipal Relief Legislation  

(Chapter 53 of the Acts of 2020) 
April 3, 2020 

 

Cities and towns have faced numerous challenges resulting from the novel coronavirus COVID-19 outbreak.  City 

and town halls are closed to the public, there is limited staffing of public offices, and there are social distancing 

advisories, all resulting in significant concerns as to how Land Use Boards and Commissions can proceed during 

this unprecedented time.  As detailed in our March 21, 2020 eUpdate, “Responses To Frequently Asked Questions 

Arising In the Land Use Context, In Light of the COVID-19 Virus Outbreak”, there are important deadlines that 

must be adhered to in a land use permitting context.   

On April 2, 2020, both houses of the General Court approved, and on April 3, 2020 Governor Baker signed, a new 

law giving some reprieve to Land Use boards regarding applications, hearings and permits.  Chapter 53 of the Acts 

of 2020, “An Act to Address Challenged Faced by Municipalities and State Authorities Resulting from COVID-19” 

(Act).  We have summarized the highlights of the new law below.  In general, Section 17 of the Act temporarily 

extends certain statutory deadlines for action by “Permit Granting Authorities” due to the current State of 

Emergency.  It applies to the conduct of public meetings, public hearings, or other actions taken by local boards 

and commissions serving in a quasi-judicial (i.e., adjudicatory) capacity.  In light of these deadline extensions, we 

have updated our March 21, 2020 eUpdate, referenced above, and this updated guidance can be found on our 

website, at http://www.k-plaw.com/covid-19-resources/. 

Definitions and Applicability:   

• “Permit” is defined as “a permit, variance, special permit, license, amendment, extension or other 

approval issued by a permit granting authority pursuant to a statute, ordinance, bylaw, rule or regulation, 

whether ministerial or discretionary” 

• “Permit Granting Authority” is defined as “a local, district, county or regional official, or a local, district, 

county or regional multi-member body, that is authorized to issue a permit.” 

Filing of an Application for a Permit:  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of state or local law, the Act allows 

for the electronic filing of applications for a permit either through an electronic website or as attachments to an 

electronic mail sent to the city or town clerk.  These electronic applications are deemed duly filed as of the date 

http://www.k-plaw.com/covid-19-resources/


 

 617.556.0007  |  1.800.548.3522  |  www.k-plaw.com  |  ©2020 KP Law, P.C. 

of the filing if certified as received by the city or town clerk.  Certification of receipt may be via e-mail or other 

electronic means to the applicant, and must be provided electronically if the permit application is submitted 

electronically and the applicant requests an electronic receipt.  Note that a permit granting authority may still 

contest the completeness of an application at the time of filing if the application is ultimately denied by the 

permit granting authority or the permit is ultimately appealed by the applicant.   

Opening a Hearing:  Any requirement of a statute, ordinance, bylaw, rule, or regulation that a hearing commence 

within a specific period of time after the filing of an application or request for permit approval shall be suspended 

as of March 10, 2020, and the suspension of that time will continue through to 45 days after the termination of 

the State of Emergency, or as of a date otherwise prescribed by law, whichever is later.   

Tolling of Existing Permits:  A permit in effect or existence as of March 10, 2020, is tolled and shall not lapse or 

otherwise expire during the State of Emergency.  Additionally, any time period for meeting a deadline within a 

permit or for performance of a condition of the permit, shall toll during the State of Emergency. 

Constructive Approval:  No permits shall be constructively approved due to the failure of the permit granting 

authority to act within the time required by a statute, ordinance, bylaw, rule or regulation during the State of 

Emergency, so long as the permit granting authority acts on the permit application within 45 days after the 

termination of the State of Emergency or by a date otherwise prescribed by law, whichever is later. 

Scheduling/Rescheduling Hearings:  The Chair of a permit granting authority may schedule or reschedule on one 

or more occasions, a hearing or decision deadline on a permit application, whether or not a quorum of the body is 

present, to a date not more than 45 days after the termination of the State of Emergency or after a date 

otherwise prescribed by law, whichever is later.  Notice of any rescheduled date shall be provided to the applicant 

at the applicant’s address, and to the general public by posting electronically on the website of the city or town 

clerk. 

Recording at the Registry of Deeds:  If a permit is required to be recorded with the registry of deeds or filed with 

registry district of the land court within a certain period of time after its issuance, either to remain in force and 

effect or as a condition to exercising the permit, the period of time for recording the permit shall be suspended 

during such time as the relevant registry of deeds or registry district of the land court is closed or restricting public 

in-person access.  Additionally, the failure to record the permit shall not preclude the permit holder from applying 

for, obtaining and commencing construction activities pursuant to other required permits and approvals such as a 

building permit. 

Pending Applications:  A hearing on a pending permit application which has been opened by a permit granting 

authority before March 10, 2020, shall be automatically tolled and continued to the first hearing date of the 

permit granting authority following the termination of the State of Emergency (provided said meeting must be 

within 45 days of the termination of the State of Emergency) or to a date otherwise prescribed by law, whichever 

is later.  

Revocation, Modification or Extension of a Permit:  Where applicable law or regulation allows a permit granting 

authority to revoke or modify a permit, a permit granting authority may proceed with a permit revocation or 



 

 617.556.0007  |  1.800.548.3522  |  www.k-plaw.com  |  ©2020 KP Law, P.C. 

modification, subject to applicable notice and hearing requirements.  However, during the State of Emergency, 

and for 60 days after the State of Emergency is terminated, no permit shall be revoked or modified where the 

permit holder fails to exercise or otherwise commence work because of the State of Emergency, or started work 

on or before March 10, 2020 but stopped as a result of the State of Emergency.   

Additionally, at the discretion of the permit granting authority and for good cause shown, the permit granting 

authority, or its Chair (with or without a quorum), may provide a permit holder with a reasonable, further 

extension of time to exercise or otherwise commence work pursuant to the permit.   

Remote or Virtual Meetings:  The Act codifies the Governor’s March 10, 2020 Order titled “Order Suspending 

Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, § 20” , allowing permit granting authorities to conduct 

meetings and public hearings remotely, during the State of Emergency, in accordance with the Governor’s Order 

as it may be amended.  We previously provided guidance on the specific requirements to comply with such Open 

Meeting Law requirements during this time of an emergency for meetings and hearings, which is available online 

here. 

Decisions: A permit granting authority may issue decisions on permit applications for which duly held public 

hearings or meetings have been held and may not prohibit any permit granting official from issuing permits, 

including but not limited to, demolition or building permits. 

 

Summary:  While the Act provides some welcome relief to land use permitting boards, committees and 

commissions in these uncertain times, we expect that individual boards or permitting officials may still have 

questions about the scope and extent of the Act’s application to particular permitting matters.    We are always 

available to assist our communities in navigating these complex issues for new or pending applications or projects 

in your community. 

We will continue to keep you updated on additional developments in the face of this rapidly evolving pandemic.  

A reminder that we have established a Coronavirus “hotline”, at coronavirusinfo@k-plaw.com.  A dedicated team 

of our attorneys is available through this “hotline” e-mail address to answer the most frequently-asked legal 

questions arising from COVID-19.  One of these designated attorneys will respond promptly to your inquiries.  In 

some instances, you may be referred to your primary or land use contact, and you should of course feel free to 

contact these attorney(s) directly with COVID-19 related questions.   

 

 

 

Disclaimer: This information is provided as a service by KP Law, P.C. This information is general in nature and does not, and is not intended to, constitute 

legal advice. Neither the provision nor receipt of this information creates an attorney-client relationship with KP Law, P.C.  Whether to take any action based 

upon the information contained herein should be determined only after consultation with legal counsel.                      

http://k-plaw.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Signed-Open-Meeting-Law-Order-3.12.20.pdf
http://k-plaw.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Signed-Open-Meeting-Law-Order-3.12.20.pdf
http://k-plaw.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/eUpdate-Implementation-of-Governors-Order-on-Open-Meeting-Law-1.pdf
mailto:coronavirusinfo@k-plaw.com


 
 
 
 
 

List of Elected and Appointed 
Committees and Boards 



Appendix A

ELECTED BOARDS CONTACT EMAIL

Moderator Town Clerk  ljohnston@oakbluffsma.gov

Board of Selectmen Executive Secretary  abutler@oakbluffsma.gov

Board of Health Health Agent mlancaster@oakbluffsma.gov

Cemetery Commissioners Highway Administrator nmorey@oakbluffsma.gov

Finance Committee FinCom Chair fincom@oakbluffsma.gov

MV Commissioners MV Commission mvcommission.org/commissioners

Parks Commissioners Chair abillings@oakbluffsma.gov

Constables Town Clerk ljohnston@oakbluffsma.gov

Tree Warden Warden rcombra@oakbluffsma.gov

Land Bank Commissioner Representative http://www.mvlandbank.com/

Planning Board Planning Bd. Administrator planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov

School Committee MV School Committee http://www.mvyps.org/school-committee/

Wastewater Commissioners Wastewater Administrator lmerritt@oakbluffsma.gov

APPOINTED BOARDS

Affordable Housing Committee Board Clerk ahc@oakbluffsma.gov

Board of Assessors Principal Assessor manderson@oakbluffsma.gov

Cape Light Compact Representative rtoole@capelightcompact.com

Capital Program Committee Town Administrator rwhritenour@oakbluffsma.gov

Community Preservation Committee Administrator  mknight@oakbluffsma.gov

Conservation Committee Conservation Agent edurkee@oakbluffsma.gov

Copeland Plan Review Committee Building Administrator buildingadmin@oakbluffsma.gov

Cottage City Historic Commission Building Administrator buildingadmin@oakbluffsma.gov

Council on Aging COA Administrator rcogliano@oakbluffsma.gov

Harbor Advisory Committee Harbormaster obmarina@comcast.net

Herring Run Com. Shellfish Constable cfisher@oakbluffsma.gov

Historical Commissioner Chair pammelrose@gmail.com

Land Bank Advisory Committee Conservation Agent edurkee@oakbluffsma.gov

Library Trustees Library Director: amalik@clamsnet.org

MV Cultural Committee Representatives mass-culture.org/Marthas-Vineyard

MVTV Representative bpintandem@gmail.com

OB Affordable Housing Trust Executive Secretary abutler@oakbluffsma.gov

Personnel Board Assistant Town Administrator wbrough@oakbluffsma.gov

Board of Registrars Town Clerk  ljohnston@oakbluffsma.gov

Roads and Byways Committee Highway Superintendent  rcombra@oakbluffsma.gov

Shellfish Committee Shellfish Constable cfisher@oakbluffsma.gov

Sign Review Committee Building Administrator buildingadmin@oakbluffsma.gov

Steamship Auth. Port Council Representative steamshipauthority.com/about/history

Veteran's Agent* Dukes County Tel: 508 693 6887

Zoning Board of Appeals Zoning Administrator cmorris@oakbluffsma.gov

mailto:mlancaster@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:nmorey@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:fincom@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:fincom@oakbluffsma.gov
http://www.mvcommission.org/commissioners
http://www.mvcommission.org/commissioners
mailto:abillings@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:ljohnston@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:rcombra@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov
http://www.mvyps.org/school-committee/
http://www.mvyps.org/school-committee/
mailto:lmerritt@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:ahc@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:ahc@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:manderson@oakbluffsma.gov
http://www.capelightcompact.org/
mailto:rtoole@capelightcompact.com
mailto:rwhritenour@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:edurkee@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:buildingadmin@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:buildingadmin@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:buildingadmin@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:buildingadmin@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:rcogliano@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:obmarina@comcast.net
mailto:cfisher@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:pammelrose@gmail.com
mailto:edurkee@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:amalik@clamsnet.org
mailto:bpintandem@gmail.com
mailto:bpintandem@gmail.com
mailto:abutler@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:wbrough@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:cfisher@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:buildingadmin@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:buildingadmin@oakbluffsma.gov
mailto:cmorris@oakbluffsma.gov


 
 
 
 
 

Correspondence 



Re: Marthas Vineyard High School Fields Assessment Proposal REV 4-1-2020.pdf

T E Hopkins <ewellhopkins@mac.com>
Thu 4/2/2020 5<49 PM
To:  turner@mvcommission.org <turner@mvcommission.org>
Cc:  Oak Bluffs Planning Board <planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov>

Afternoon, Adam

During these challenging times, family first. Be safe.
 
I will read the attached proposal and comment shortly.  In terms of context, it would be helpful if you would 
forward the criteria you used to solicit this proposal.

In the meantime please consider the following so as to better understand my expectations and that of the full 
Oak Bluffs Planning Board(OBPB) as it pertains to the Martha’s Vineyard School Committee (applicant) 
application review.
 
I have presented certain key points for the OBPB to consider. Additionally, the board has discussed and 
agreed on the scope of inquiry for this application. It is fair to say, the OBPB hopes this point-of-view will 
inform the Martha’s Vineyard Commission (MVC) DRI - review process. The OBPB must still determine 
what concurrent activities, if any, it will perform during the MVC DRI review process.
 
1.) After consulting with the town attorney my recommendation to the OBPB is to follow the guidance stated 
in my letter of referral dated 2/21/2020 (see below).
 
2.) It is the responsibility of the OBPB to oversee, condition and rule on all land-use applications in the town 
of Oak Bluffs. Other agencies such as county, state and federal bodies in the course of performing their 
oversight do not relieve the OBPB of performing its duties.
 
3.) In this case, the applicant has asserted legal limitations on the town of Oak Bluffs’ authority under zoning 
by-laws. Therefore the OBPB is faced with a decision to directly challenge this assertion or take other steps 
to ensure proper review of this application. My recommendation has been to support the MVC - DRI process 
and any other party with authority to oversee this application to ensure proper scrutiny is applied to this 
application. 
 
The 2/21/2020 DRI referral speaks directly to the role the OBPB can play in the MVC - DRI process. 
 
The most fiscally prudent way to ensure this application is adequately reviewed is to support all agencies in 
their reviews instead of advocating our rights in a court of law at this point.
 
4.) There are five areas of comprehensive review that must be applied to this application agreed to by the 
OBPB (see below). The OBPB has not agreed to the manner in which it will formulate an option on each 
area. The OBPB cannot as a policy expect others to speak on its behalf or perform the duties of the town of 
Oak Bluffs. Therefore the extent of involvement of the OBPB in the MVC DRI - review process is to be 
determined.
 
5.) Once the MVC completes it DRI review the OBPB then consider of completeness of the DRI process and 
determine how to proceed based on all due diligence performed to date.
 
 



 

 
 
Scope of review established and agreed to by OBPB as of 3/15/2020, required for the MVSC (applicant) 
application.

1.) Applicant’s property bounds:
Overall campus - abutting EDG-VH Rd.
            Impact on pedestrian safety based on incremental development of property.
            Conditions if any to be placed on remaining undeveloped — old growth forest.
            Land-use guidelines for all phases of this project as it pertains stated environmental goals of the 
MVC.
           
           
2.) Environmental  performance:
            Use of LID techniques - Greening methods
            Groundwater protectionism
            Adoption of existing planting and species selection. 
           
3.) Town department — guidance and review of regulation:
 



            Health
            Wastewater
            Building
            Water Authority
            FinCom
            ConCom - guidance
            Fire / Law enforcement
 
3.) State Forest Department:
 
            Input as it pertains to forest service long & short-term vision.
 
3.) Dukes County & FAA:
 
            Input in-terms of flight path approach
           
 
4.) Realistic assumptions / impact of future phases on land use:
 
            Horticultural
            Vocational classes — in process development area for shed construction
            School bus parking
            Existing track area envelope

5.) Applicant’s fiscal ability to complete and maintain project proposal:

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Ewell Hopkins

Ewell Hopkins
Oak Bluffs Planning Board - Chairperson
1.508.560.7227
http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board

Please remember when writing or responding that the Secretary of State's Office has determined 
that e-mail is a public record.
 
However,  the information contained in this e-mail and in the accompanying attachments is 
intended solely for the use of the individual/entity named above. If you have received this e-mail in 
error, please notify us.

On Apr 2, 2020, at 12<35 PM, Adam Turner <turner@mvcommission.org> wrote:

http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board
mailto:turner@mvcommission.org


Gree$ngs	Ewell..	hope	you	safe	and	sound..	crazy	$mes	huh?
	
I	forward	a	copy	of	a	proposal	from	a	firm	to	review	and	evaluate	the	regional	high	school	field	
project.
	
Please	review	and	offer	comments.	we	are	con$nuing	to	iden$fy	and	evaluate	professional	
services	for	this	project.	one	discipline	will	be	a	grass	field	expert	to	evaluate	whether	a	gras	
field	can	be	installed	and	maintained..
	
Again	regards	to	you	and	family	..	be	safe.	
	
adam
<Marthas Vineyard High School Fields Assessment Proposal REV 4-1-2020.pdf>



Per your request:

T E Hopkins <ewellhopkins@mac.com>
Fri 4/3/2020 3=49 PM
To:  Bill Cleary <Mvappraisal2@comcast.net>
Cc:  Oak Bluffs Planning Board <planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov>; Adam Turner <turner@mvcommission.org>

1 attachments (655 KB)
Marthas Vineyard High School Fields Assessment Proposal REV 4-1-2020.pdf;

Afternoon, Bill

Kim indicated that you were interested in seeing the first proposal submitted to the MVC for 
technical assistance on the High School application. (attached below)

I have requested additional context and will share that with you as soon as I hear back from 
Adam. The agreement made with Adam is that I would work closely with him, hopefully selecting 
a mutually agreed upon consultant.  My concern is that Adam did not disclose the criteria used 
for soliciting these proposals (1 received so far).

On the surface, I have some concerns about Kevin McHugh s̓ bio. It s̓ unclear what Adam is 
looking to gain from hiring an outside consultant. But if it s̓ to truly evaluate the environmental
and human health risks associated with synthetic turf, we needs to find scientists with expertise 
in micro plastic pollution, etc., not industry consultants. 

If Adam s̓ intent is otherwise, I will clear that up and report back to the full board. Iʼm unsure of 
what Adam is ultimately hoping to gain from such an undertaking but I assure you this will be 
cleared up prior to our next board meeting.

Thank you for your proactive and on-going interest. I will brief the full board during our 
upcoming meeting. In the meantime please do not discuss this material with any other board 
members, so as to not violate open meeting law 940 CMR 29.01-
29.11 https://www.mass.gov/the-open-meeting-law

Ewell

Ewell Hopkins
Oak Bluffs Planning Board - Chairperson
1.508.560.7227
http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board

Please remember when writing or responding that the Secretary of State's Office has determined 
that e-mail is a public record.
 
However,  the information contained in this e-mail and in the accompanying attachments is 
intended solely for the use of the individual/entity named above. If you have received this e-mail in 
error, please notify us.

https://www.mass.gov/the-open-meeting-law
http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board


Re:

T E Hopkins <ewellhopkins@mac.com>
Sun 4/5/2020 11>02 PM
To:  turner@mvcommission.org <turner@mvcommission.org>
Cc:  Alex Elvin <elvin@mvcommission.org>; Oak Bluffs Planning Board <planningboard@oakbluffsma.gov>

Evening, Adam

Maybe we need to get on the phone together. I hope you donʼt consider this to be your 
response to my recent email to you.

Among other things, I asked to view the criteria used for your RFP. If you received other 
proposals, I would like to compare what you mean by “experts were in one camp or the other”.

Are you limiting the scope of this selection of expert to grass vs synthetic?

Ewell Hopkins

PS. Welcome, Alex, I look forward to making your acquaintance. 

Ewell Hopkins
Oak Bluffs Planning Board - Chairperson
1.508.560.7227
http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board

Please remember when writing or responding that the Secretary of State's Office has determined that e-mail is a public 
record.
 
However,  the information contained in this e-mail and in the accompanying attachments is intended solely for the use of the 
individual/entity named above. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify us.

On Apr 5, 2020, at 10>16 PM, Adam Turner <turner@mvcommission.org> wrote:

Gree$ngs	Ewell,
Thanks	for	your	email.	We	looked	extensively	for	an	expert	who	can	offer	unbiased	(not	
grass	nor	turf)	analysis	on	various	issues	including	environmental	risks,	the	school's	
ability	to	maintain	the	fields,	whether	the	facility	can		handle	the	expected	play	volume,	
and	other	issues	such	as	disposal	and	heat.	It	was	difficult	as	most	experts	were	in	one	
camp	or	the	other.	We	are	evalua$ng	the	firm	I	emailed	to	you.	If	you	are	not	sa$sfied	
we	will	con$nue	to	look.	
	We	are	nearing	comple$on	of	our	ini$al	staff	report	on	this	project	and	have	begun	to	
ask	for	informa$on	from	the	applicant.	I	include	our	latest	draH.		We	also	requested	the	
product	manufacturers	to	send	us	samples	of	the	turf	and	infill.
We		also	are	looking	at	other	area	facili$es	including	Nantucket.	The	Nantucket	High	
School	is	developing	an	athle$c	campus	master	plan	that	includes	two	synthe$c	turf	
fields,	for	football	and	field	hockey.	The	town	already	has	a	synthe$c	field	that	it	installed	

http://www.oakbluffsma.gov/182/Planning-Board
mailto:turner@mvcommission.org


11	years	ago,	but	the	high	school	doesn't	have	any	yet.	Dick	Webb	designed	the	town	
field	and	is	the	lead	architect	for	the	high	school	project	and	we	have	a	mee$ng	
scheduled	for	this	week.	
Again,	regards	to	you	and	your	family...	stay	safe.
	
<DRI 352-M4 MVRHS Athletic Fields staff questions for high school 4-2-20.docx>
<HAI-MVRHS-MVC Questions 040320.pdf><DRI 352-M4 MVRHS fields staff report 
3-25-20.pdf>



  

 
PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL 

SCIENCE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE  
MARTHA’S VINEYARD HIGH SCHOOL ATHLETIC FIELD PROJECT 

APRIL 1, 2020 



4/1/2020 Proposal for Technical Assistance i 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1.0 Introduc�on ...................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 About Coneco ................................................................................................................................ 1 

2.0 Proposed Scope of Services .............................................................................................................. 2 

Task 1: Project Kickoff Mee�ng ............................................................................................................. 2 

Task 2: Review Available Informa�on and Issues of Concern ............................................................... 2 

Task 3: Project Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3 

Task 4: Public Mee�ngs ......................................................................................................................... 4 

3.0 Project Schedule ............................................................................................................................... 4 

4.0 Project Base Budget .......................................................................................................................... 4 

 

Atachments: 

Resumes of Key Coneco Personnel 



 

4/1/2020 Proposal for Technical Assistance 1 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
Coneco Engineers & Scien�sts, Incorporated (Coneco) is pleased to provide the Martha’s Vineyard 
Commission (the Commission) with this proposal to assist with their review of the proposed Martha’s 
Vineyard High School Athle�c Field project.  It is our understanding that the Commission is seeking 
technical assistance during their review of sensi�ve components of the field project, with specific focus 
on the components of the proposed synthe�c turf surfacing and the poten�al impacts of those 
components to human health and the environment.   

Coneco is uniquely posi�oned to provide an unbiased, thorough and experienced review of the key 
project components.  Kevin McHugh, PE, who will serve as Coneco’s project lead, provided similar 
services to the Town of Lynnfield, Massachusets as a member of the 
Town’s Field Commitee as Lynnfield undertook a mul�-use athle�c 
field project at its High School.  Kevin provided technical exper�se 
throughout the assessment and design stages, including conduc�ng a 
thorough evalua�on of the issues associated with synthe�c turf.  Kevin 
will be supported by Brian Klingler, PG, LSP, the Principal of Coneco’s 
Environmental Division and Coneco’s Environmental staff.  Our more 
than 40 environmental professionals have extensive experience in the 
assessment of all types of impacted media and in conduc�ng risk 
assessments to determine impacts to human health and the 
environment and this collec�ve exper�se will be cri�cal in the 
evalua�on of the proposed synthe�c turf system materials. 

A�er ini�ally being contacted about this poten�al project, we at Coneco 
began reviewing available informa�on regarding the project history.  Based on this informa�on, it is 
clear that the proposed development of a new athle�c complex at the high school is somewhat 
controversial, with both proponents and opponents expressing their opinions on the project at public 
mee�ngs and in the media.  Many of the concerns expressed appear to be focused on the total project 
cost; the source of funding; the need for new athle�c fields versus other high school-related needs; 
environmental concerns; and athlete safety.  In addi�on to these concerns, wastewater disposal was 
recently added as an issue that will need to be addressed as part of the overall project design.  These 
concerns are not unusual as most communi�es that are facing similar projects have dealt with similar 
concerns.  Having dealt with the same concerns as a part of past projects, Coneco can address the 
concerns from an unbiased and professional manner and will work closely with the Commission to 
complete the project review and develop recommenda�ons. 

1.1 ABOUT CONECO 

Established in 1989, Coneco Engineers & Scien�sts, Incorporated (Coneco) provides a broad range of 
consul�ng services to clients in both the public and private sectors.  Our staff of approximately 55 
engineers, environmental scien�sts, and surveyors provides a unique blend of skills that allow us to 
effec�vely respond to varying project challenges that typically would be beyond the capabili�es of a 
tradi�onal engineering consul�ng firm.  With our commonly owned site development branch, Coneco 
Building, and our alterna�ve energy branch, Coneco Energy, we can view a project from many different 
angles and provide mul�ple op�ons to address a project, while maintaining a cost-effec�ve budget.  
From our corporate office in Bridgewater, MA, and our regional offices in Wes�ord, MA and 
Glastonbury, CT we are situated to respond to projects throughout the northeast. 

Lynnfield High School Complex 



 

4/1/2020 Proposal for Technical Assistance 2 
 

Coneco’s experienced engineers, environmental scien�sts and surveyors can provide a wide array of 
environmental and engineering services to assist with projects of varying complexity.  These services 
include: 

• Hazardous Waste/LSP Services 

• Civil/Site Engineering 

• Environmental Permi�ng and Planning 

• Structural and Geotechnical 
Engineering 

• Geothermal and Solar System Design 
and Construc�on 

• Storm Water Management 

• Environmental Engineering • Survey and GIS Mapping 

• Solid Waste Engineering • Cost Es�ma�ng 

• Transporta�on Engineering (roadway, 
bridges, trails, boardwalks, etc.) 

• Construc�on Observa�on and 
Administra�on 

• Water and Wastewater Engineering • Construc�on and Environmental 
Permi�ng 

With this high level of technical experience, we can comfortably match the exper�se of many of the 
larger consul�ng firms while cost-effec�vely delivering our services and maintaining the levels of 
communica�on, contact and client service typically associated with smaller firms. 

2.0 PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES 
TASK 1: PROJECT KICKOFF MEETING 

The Coneco project team will coordinate and atend a project kickoff mee�ng to ini�ate the project 
and gather important informa�on.  Along with providing an opportunity for team/client introduc�ons, 
this ini�al mee�ng will focus on the overall goals of the project and provide an opportunity for ini�al 
discussions regarding expecta�ons and the Commission’s wants and needs.  Due to the current travel 
and mee�ng restric�ons, we have assumed that the kickoff mee�ng will be held virtually, either as a 
conference call or as a video mee�ng.  However, if the restric�ons are li�ed prior to the mee�ng 
schedule date, we will be pleased to travel to your loca�on to hold the mee�ng in person.  No 
addi�onal charge will be added for an in-person mee�ng. 

TASK 2: REVIEW AVAILABLE INFORMATION AND ISSUES OF CONCERN 

Having completed an ini�al review of the Athle�c Field Master Plan (Huntress Associates, 2/4/2019) 
and the permi�ng plan set (Huntress Associates, 1/22/2020) and based on our recent 
communica�ons, we have developed a general understanding of the overall scope of the field project 
and the areas where the Commission is seeking technical assistance.  Per the Commission’s request we 
have assumed that our focus will be on the environmental, health and safety and possible toxicological 
impacts of the components of the synthe�c turf system.  Injury rates, possible issues due to elevated 
temperatures, project capital and maintenance costs, etc. will not be included as part of our 
assessment.  As also requested, Coneco will review the proposed drainage system for the field and will 
conduct a limited assessment of that component of the design. 



 

4/1/2020 Proposal for Technical Assistance 3 
 

Before moving forward with our assessment of the poten�al environmental and health and safety 
impacts of the proposed project and the field drainage system, we will need to review the project in 
greater detail.  This would include informa�on regarding the preferred synthe�c turf materials 
(especially the infill), subsurface condi�ons, and the site grading and drainage design.  

TASK 3: PROJECT ASSESSMENT 

Coneco will complete an assessment of the project components, with a focus on the proposed 
synthe�c surface, the infill, subsurface materials and site grading and drainage design.  Synthe�c turf 
has been installed at mul�-purpose athle�c field surfacing for a number of years, but not without its 
detractors.  Concerns have been raised regarding: 

1. the poten�al impacts of the various infill materials to human health and the environment; 
2. the poten�al presence of lead in the paint used to color the turf fibers; 
3. the heat that the turf generates during summer months; and 
4. reports of increased occurrence of specific injuries, including ACL tears and concussions.   

When reviewing the studies that present these concerns, it is important to note the date that studies 
were performed and the specific materials that were evaluated.  Recent changes in the materials used 
in the manufacture and construc�on of synthe�c turf systems have targeted a number of these 
concerns.  For example, synthe�c turf manufacturers now state that lead is no longer present in any 
phase of the manufacture of synthe�c turf systems, especially in the paint used.   

Infill materials have also evolved in an atempt to address the environmental and human health 
concerns that have been raised with the use of recycled crumb rubber (ground �res) as an infill 
material.  Some studies have ques�oned whether health issues can arise from inhala�on of vapors that 
are released from the rubber, especially during hot summer months, or through absorp�on, either 
through the skin or an abrasion.  In addi�on, crumb rubber infill tends to absorb heat during the 
summer months and many studies show that synthe�c turf surfaces are generally much warmer than 
natural grass surfaces.  To address these issues, manufacturers have been developing infill materials 
that are nature based, including cork, coconut and olive cores.  Although these materials may be a 
more environmentally sensi�ve op�on and may address some of the health concerns, they must s�ll 
perform as required to meet the needs of the users (impact protec�on, surface stability, etc.) while 
also mee�ng the necessary drainage requirements.  Although the above issues can all be of concern 
when considering the construc�on of a synthe�c turf field system, as men�oned previously, our focus 
will be on the evalua�on of possible human health and environmental impacts only (Items 1 and 2 
above). 

For this task, Coneco will obtain and review current manufacturer informa�on regarding the materials 
that are proposed for the complete synthe�c turf system.  This will include the following: 

1. Surface Fiber Layer – Review the selected material to confirm its 
chemical makeup and poten�al health and safety issues. 
 

2. Infill System – Obtain and review all available informa�on regarding 
the proposed infill material and review alterna�ves for 
considera�on.  This will include : 

 
a. the chemical components of the materials (MSDS sheets, 

etc.);  
Shaw Sports Turf 



 

4/1/2020 Proposal for Technical Assistance 4 
 

b. informa�on regarding the material source and manufacturing process, including 
chemicals used in the process; 

c. chemical addi�on requirements a�er installa�on (weed control, biocides/an�fungals, 
etc.) 

d. drainage capaci�es; 
e. available studies prepared by unbiased par�es (e.g., CDC) 

 
3. Shock Pad (if included) – Review the selected material to confirm its benefit within the system, 

environmental issues and drainage capability. 

We will also review the overall system’s poten�al impacts to the environment (including possible 
impacts to the drinking water aquifer). 

This informa�on will be presented in a Risk Assessment-type report as well as in public presenta�on 
format for use at mul�ple public presenta�ons as discussed below. 

TASK 4: PUBLIC MEETINGS 

We understand that this project is highly sensi�ve and are prepared to assist the Commission with 
public presenta�ons of the findings and recommenda�ons.  For this task, we have assumed that 
Coneco will prepare for and atend one public mee�ng, and our budget includes all travel costs. 

3.0 PROJECT SCHEDULE 
We are prepared to begin this project immediately.  Due to the unprecedented �me that we are 
currently facing, in-person mee�ngs may not be possible, but we could ini�ate the project with 
telephone and/or video mee�ngs and follow-up with in-person mee�ngs when possible.  For the 
overall schedule, we will work with the Commission to meet your internal project schedule. 

4.0 PROJECT BASE BUDGET 
Coneco’s proposed budget for the above referenced tasks is as follows: 

Task 1:  Project Kickoff Mee�ng =      $1,000 

Task 2:  Review Available Informa�on and Issues of Concern =   $3,000 

Task 3:  Project Assessment =       $5,100 

Task 4:  Public Mee�ngs =       $2,000 

Total          $11,100 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal and look forward to speaking with you further 
about this interes�ng project.  Please feel free to contact Kevin McHugh either by email 
(kmchugh@coneco.com) or by telephone at 617-640-7949 at any �me. 

mailto:kmchugh@coneco.com


Kevin E. McHugh, P.E. Principal of Public Services 

 

 

Coneco Engineers, Scientists & Surveyors 

EDUCATION: 
 
Dalhousie University  
(formerly Technical University of Nova Scotia), Halifax, Nova Scotia, Canada 
Bachelor of Science, Civil Engineering, June 1989 
Northeastern University, Boston, Massachusetts 
Master of Science, Environmental Engineering, June 1996 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: 
 
Coneco Engineers & Scientists, Inc. 2008-Present 
Principal of Municipal Services  
Environmental Partners Group, Inc. 1998-2008 
Sr. Project Engineer / Project Manager  
ERM New England, Inc. 1991-1998 
Project Engineer / Project Manager  
Kurz Associates, Inc. 1989-1991 
Project Engineer  
 
Kevin McHugh is a Registered Professional Engineer with over 25 years of varied engineering 
experience including design, permitting, construction, and project management.  He has served as the 
project manager and has provided engineering services for a variety of stormwater, wastewater, water 
supply, site development, roadway, solid waste, recreational facility and hazardous waste projects.  
Most recently, Kevin has been assisting the Massachusetts Department of Conservation and 
Recreation (DCR) with numerous projects, including the design of aquatic (pool and spray deck) and 
multi-use recreational facilities.  Kevin has also been working with the Division of Capital Asset 
Management and Maintenance (DCAMM) on campus-wide improvements at Mount Wachusett 
Community College and with numerous municipalities with various stormwater and roadway 
improvement projects.   
 
REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS: 
 
RECREATIONAL FACILITIES 

♦ Athletic Complex Development, Lynnfield, Massachusetts – Kevin served as the technical 
advisor and member of the Lynnfield Field Committee through the planning, design and 
construction of an eight million dollar recreation complex at Lynnfield High School.  The 
complex includes: three rectangular synthetic turf fields; synthetic turf baseball and softball 
fields; a multipurpose concession/restroom/storage building; recreational trails; field and 
landscape lighting and amenities. The complex, which is believed to be the largest municipal 
synthetic turf recreational complex in the region, opened for use during the fall of 2014. 

♦ Veterans Memorial Pool Renovation, Everett, Massachusetts – Working with the DCR, Kevin 
directed environmental investigations and the development and implementation of both short- and 
long-term environmental remedial measures at the existing pool facility.  The long-term measures 
include the complete demolition and construction of a new pool facility to replace the existing 
facility.  Kevin directed the design and permitting of a complete new pool facility, including a 
new pool shell, utilities, decking and amenities and a new spray deck to replace an aged wading 



Kevin E. McHugh, P.E. (continued) 

  

 

Coneco Engineers, Scientists & Surveyors 

pool.  Kevin also provided construction administration throughout the project. 

♦ State–Wide Pool Compliance Inspections and Certifications, Massachusetts – Over the past five 
years, Kevin has been responsible for inspecting and certifying all of DCR’s pools state-wide for 
compliance with the Virginia Graeme Baker Act prior to the opening of each pool.  The program 
includes inspections at 50 pools, the development of recommended improvements/modifications 
to ensure compliance with the VGBA and the issuance of certifications for each pool.  At the 
conclusion of each pool season, Kevin then develops design plans and directs improvements to 
further improve conditions at each pool site, where deemed necessary.  These improvements have 
included feature electrical grounding/bonding, ADA compliance modifications, and general site 
improvements.  Kevin has also assisted DCR at a number of pool facilities investigating causes of 
water loss and improvements to repair water loss sources. 

♦ Moynihan Spray Park Design and Permitting, Hyde Park, Massachusetts – Kevin completed the 
design, permitting and provided construction oversight services for the redevelopment of an 
existing wading pool facility into a new spray park.  The project also included an assessment of 
the environmental conditions at the former wading pool and the demolition of the pool and the 
remediation of legacy impacted construction materials.  The new ADA compliant spray park, 
which opened to the public for the 2012 summer season, includes multiple above and in-ground 
spray features, upgraded site utilities and new landscaping.  

♦ Artesani Spray Park Design and Permitting, Brighton, Massachusetts – The Artesani 
Playground and wading pool facility, which is located on the bank of the Charles River in 
Brighton, MA, is one of the most popular recreational facilities in the DCR system.  In addition 
the site is also a host location for the Head of the Charles Regatta, an annual crew race that 
attracts competitors from around the world.  Due to the high-level of use at the site, DCR pursued 
the addition of a new spray deck to provide an additional attraction for the many users while 
celebrating the 2014 50th anniversary of the Regatta.  Working with DCR, Kevin completed the 
design and permitting and provided construction oversight assistance of an ADA compliant, 
themed spray deck.  The spray deck includes custom spray features to celebrate the Regatta and 
wildlife that are native to the Charles River.  The spray deck opened during the 2014 summer 
season and prior to the Regatta’s 50th anniversary. 

♦ Esplanade Spray Park and Existing Playground Improvements, Boston, MA - Kevin recently 
completed the design and permitting of a new spray park to replace an aged wading pool and 
improvements to an existing and adjacent playground within the Esplanade in Boston, MA.   Due 
to the location of the site within the Esplanade and along the bank of the Charles River, 
permitting for the project was extensive and included approvals from the Boston Landmarks 
Commission, the Boston Conservation Commission, and the Boston Water and Sewer 
Commission.  The spray park includes new utilities, 31 spray features, and a soft safety play 
surface.  Both the spray park and playground improvements are under construction and are 
scheduled for an early July 2015 grand opening.    



Kevin E. McHugh, P.E. (continued) 

  

 

Coneco Engineers, Scientists & Surveyors 

SITE DEVELOPMENT 
♦ North Point Maintenance Facility, Cambridge, Massachusetts – Kevin assisted the Department 

of Conservation and Recreation (DCR) by providing design, permitting and construction 
administration services for the redevelopment of their Mobile Maintenance Headquarters in 
Cambridge, Massachusetts.  The project included the construction of four new 
maintenance/storage buildings, installation of new office trailers and improvements to existing 
trailers, new water, sewer and electric utilities, and full state and local permitting for all phases of 
the project.  The completed facility included vehicle and equipment maintenance, a carpentry 
shop and metal fabricating, and improved material and equipment storage all within heated 
buildings.   

♦ Mount Wachusett Community College, Gardner, Massachusetts – Kevin directed planning, 
engineering, survey and permitting services, and provided construction administration for site-
wide improvements to the campus.  The improvements included redevelopment of all campus 
parking areas, primary roadways, campus sidewalks and walkways, stormwater management 
systems and site lighting.   

♦ Wellfleet Hollow State Campground Development, Wellfleet, Massachusetts – Working closely 
with the Department of Conservation and Recreation, Kevin directed all aspects of site planning 
for the redevelopment of a 30 acre campground from a former privately-owned facility to a public 
recreation facility.  Following the approval of the planned site improvements, Kevin directed the 
design, permitting and construction of a new public water supply system, improvements to 
roadways and the electric distribution system throughout the approximately 30 acre site, 
accessibility improvements at select locations, the renovation of a former residence to a public-
accessible Headquarters and Contact Center Facility, and the full renovation of public 
restroom/shower facilities. 

UTILITY PROJECTS 
♦ Fort Andrews Preservation and Adaptive Reuse Project, Peddocks Island, Hull, 

Massachusetts – Project Manager for the design and construction of utilities to serve the proposed 
rehabilitation of the former Fort Andrews located on Peddocks Island.  To provide utility services 
to the fort, a 20-inch diameter steel sleeve was pulled through an approximately 1,800 foot long 
directionally drilled corridor beneath Hull Gut, a major shipping channel in Boston Harbor.  Six 
high density polyethylene conduits were pulled through the steel sleeve to provide electric power, 
telephone, water, and sewer service to the fort complex.  The project also included the installation 
of new utility services on both the island and main land and the connection to existing water, 
sewer and electric utilities within the Town of Hull to service the island.  Throughout the project, 
Kevin worked closely with Jones Lang LaSalle (formerly Spaulding and Slye Colliers), the 
Boston Harbor Island Alliance, the Massachusetts Department of Conservation and Recreation 
(DCR), the National Park Service, the Army Corps of Engineers, and the Hull Conservation 
Commission. 

♦ Landfill Solar Installations, Webster and Rehoboth, Massachusetts – Kevin served as the solid 
waste technical lead for the design of solar energy facilities at a number of closed, former 
municipal landfills in Massachusetts.  As the technical lead, Kevin assessed the impacts of the 
solar facilities to the integrity of the landfill capping systems, prepared Post-Closure Use 
applications to the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection, and served as the 
liaison between the client and the regulators. 



Kevin E. McHugh, P.E. (continued) 

  

 

Coneco Engineers, Scientists & Surveyors 

♦ Stream Culvert and Tide Gate Rehabilitation, Wellfleet, Massachusetts - Kevin served as the 
Project Manager for the design, permitting and construction of improvements to a failing roadway 
culvert and tide gate system that discharges into Wellfleet Harbor.  During the summer of 2006, a 
section of the roadway that passes over the culvert and serves the Wellfleet Town pier began to 
collapse.  After completing a television inspection of the culvert, it was determined that sections 
of the culvert were separating and allowing the overlying roadway base materials to pass into the 
culvert.  Because the roadway is the primary access to the Town pier and numerous businesses, 
closing the road to replace the culvert was not an option.  Therefore to repair the culvert, slip 
lining and grouting of the existing culvert was performed.  Through negotiations with the local 
Conservation Commission and discussions with the DEP regarding waterways permitting 
requirements, it was determined that no environmental permitting would be required for the 
project. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS 
♦ Mount Wachusett Community College Campus Improvements, Gardner, Massachusetts – 

Kevin served as the Project Manager for the completion of a campus-wide study of site 
conditions and for the development of design plans for improvements to the aging campus 
infrastructure.  The propose improvements include parking lots, roadways, stormwater 
management systems, signage, and access.  The access improvements have focused on improving 
site-wide access for disabled visitors and students. 

♦ Reconstruction of Uncle Tim’s Pedestrian Bridge, Wellfleet, Massachusetts – Kevin served as 
the Project Manager and Design Engineer for the demolition and reconstruction of Uncle Tim’s 
Bridge, a historic pedestrian bridge that crosses a portion of Wellfleet Harbor.  Because of the 
bridge’s importance as a centerpiece of the Town, Kevin held numerous meetings with residents 
and Town Departments to build a consensus regarding the redeveloped bridge design and to 
coordinate the construction process.  Permitting for the project included wetlands permitting with 
the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) and local Conservation Commission, and 
negotiations with the DEP regarding waterways permitting, including Chapter 91.  Construction 
was completed in October 2008 with a grand opening celebration held in November 2008.  

♦ Wellfleet Landfill Assessment, Closure Design and Construction Management, Former 
Wellfleet Municipal Landfill, Wellfleet, Massachusetts - Kevin served as the Senior Engineer and 
Project Manager for the design and construction of the Wellfleet landfill closure.  The design 
incorporated a standard landfill cap (gas venting layer, 40 mil low linear density polyethylene 
layer, sand drainage layer, and vegetative layer) over the former municipal landfill site.  Due to 
the detected migration of landfill gases from the former landfill, the DEP had required that an 
active gas collection system be incorporated into the final closure design.  Such a system would 
require a substantial capital cost and a significant operation and maintenance commitment by the 
Town.  In place of the active system, Kevin, on behalf of the Town, successfully negotiated the 
construction of a slurry wall and passive gas system to control migration.  The approximately 
1,900 linear foot long, 30 foot deep wall was constructed as part of the cap design, providing a 
barrier between the landfill and the surrounding residential neighborhood.  To install the wall, 
approximately 30,000 cubic yards of solid waste was relocated from a portion of the property line 
to provide suitable space for the wall installation.  Construction costs for the barrier wall were 
similar to those projected for an active system, but does not require any associated operation or 
maintenance.  In addition, the buried wall does not provide the negative impact that an active 
flare system would have had on the adjacent neighborhood.  Monitoring results have proven that 
the barrier wall is successfully containing gas migration within the landfill property limits. 



Kevin E. McHugh, P.E. (continued) 

  

 

Coneco Engineers, Scientists & Surveyors 

♦ Roadway Reconstruction Design, Route 1A/133, Ipswich, Massachusetts –Kevin is serving as 
the Project Manager responsible for the development of design plans for the reconstruction of 
approximately 3,200 feet of Route 1A/133, passing through the downtown business section of the 
Town of Ipswich.  The project includes full depth reconstruction of the road surface, new ADA 
compliant sidewalks along the project length, the assessment of the existing stormwater drainage 
system, and the design of a new stormwater system to manage collected stormwater along the 
roadway length.  The entire project is being completed in accordance with MassDOT 
requirements.  Kevin is also assisting the Town in seeking federal funding for this project through 
the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS, CREDENTIALS & CERTIFICATIONS: 
 
Massachusetts Registered Professional Engineer (No. 45196) 
OSHA 40-Hour Hazardous Materials Health & Safety Training, since 1989 

PUBLICATIONS: 
 
“Chapter 9 – Soil Vapor Extraction”, co-authored with James D. Fitzgerald, Hazardous Waste 
Management, by Michael LaGrega, et. al., McGraw-Hill Book Company, New York, NY 
 
 

 



Brian F. Klingler, P.G., LSP Principal Geologist 

 

 

Coneco Engineers & Scientists, Incorporated 

EDUCATION: 
 
Skidmore College, Saratoga Spings, New York 
Bachelor of Arts, Geology, 1987 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: 
 
Coneco Engineers and Scientists, Inc.  1989-Present 
Principal Geologist  
 
Mr. Klingler is a Principal Geologist with twenty seven (27) years of concentrated technical and 
managerial experience.  He coordinates Phase I, Phase II and Phase III environmental site 
assessments, and is a senior member of Coneco’s emergency response and remediation operations 
team.  Mr. Klingler has performed numerous complex hydrological and geologic site investigations in 
diverse contaminant source settings.   
 
REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS: 

 LSP of record for over 655 Disposal Sites under the Massachusetts Contigency Plan (MCP) 310 
CMR 40.0000.  Response Action Outcome reports (Permanent Solution Statements) included all 
five phases of the MCP pipeline included advanced Phase II Site characterizations and Method 3 
Risk characterizations.   

 
 Characterized estuary sediment in Scituate Harbor in Scituate, MA for a United States Coast 

Guard dredging program.  The analysis of sediment characteristics for the related Army Corp. of 
Engineers submittal included grain size analysis (wet sieve), percent water, total organic carbon, 
and hazardous waste parameters. 

 
 Provided oversight for the removal and/or replacement of over 50 underground storage tanks 

facilities in Massachusetts, Rhode Island and Connecticut.  Closure activities included reporting 
and corrective actions, specifically involving soil removal, dewatering (NPDES), and installation 
of in situ remedial systems. 

 
 Performed initial site assessment, source identification and risk characterization of release of a 

free-phase gasoline contamination in Newton Center, Massachusetts.  Hydrogeologic 
investigations include hydraulic conductivity tests and product bail/recovery tests.  Project scope 
included submission of Downgradient Property Status (310 CMR 40.0180) relating to impacts 
from the suspected upgradient source. 

 
 Provided oversight for installation of monitoring wells, bedrock packer tests, and annual 

sampling for ongoing Phase II - Comprehensive Site Assessment at a DEP priority disposal site in 
Needham, Massachusetts.  Site concerns include a 25 acre plume of TCE and Freon contaminated 
groundwater, and potential impacts on down gradient elementary school and wetlands. 

 
 Characterized PCB contamination at shopping mall in Watertown, Massachusetts.  Provided 

oversight for the removal of PCB contaminated soil located within a subsurface settling basin. 



 

Brian F. Klingler, P.G., LSP (continued) 

 

 

Coneco Engineers & Scientists, Incorporated 

 Characterized soil and groundwater contamination from a former illegal landfill in Worcester, 
Massachusetts.  The study included extensive characterization of VOC, semi-VOC, and RCRA-8 
metals contamination.  The study involved a methane gas survey and additional groundwater 
sampling for solid waste parameters including Dioxin. 

 
 Project Manager for site characterization and remedial response action for a release of chlorinated 

compounds and naphthalene at a printing facility in southern Massachusetts.  Site issues include 
the closure of a former drywell with incineration of associated F-Listed waste.  Project scope 
included submission of Phase II Comprehensive Site assessment and Tier Classification (310 
CMR 40.0500). 

 
 Implemented a groundwater treatment system for a diesel fuel release under a Massachusetts DEP 

regulated Release Abatement Measure (310 CMR 40.0440).  The Release Abatement Measure 
consisted of a dual phase recovery system which addresses both free-phase diesel recovery and 
treatment of groundwater utilizing granular activated carbon polishing.  The Release Abatement 
Measure was completed at the Site with a limited soil removal, resulting in soil and groundwater 
contaminant levels below the applicable risk characterization standards; thereby achieving 
regulatory closure with a Response Action Outcome. 

 
 Provided oversight for remedial construction activities at a significantly contaminated creosote, 

paint and paint solvent manufacturing facility in Chelsea, Massachusetts.  Activities included 
installation of an impermeable subsurface barrier along the Chelsea River as part of the remedial 
response action. 

 
 Performed a comprehensive hydrogeologic site investigation and assessment of a former 

automotive ball bearing and anti-friction device manufacturing plant in Bristol, Connecticut.  
This Phase III Assessment (CTDEEP) involved an extensive hydrogeologic, geologic and 
contaminant migration study of the Site.  Contaminant issues involved a leaking 20,000-gallon 
fuel oil UST, eight exposed UST excavations and associated soil stockpiles, and dissolved 
chlorinated solvent contamination which had been the result of 73 years of industrial 
manufacturing at the Site. 

 
 Performed site assessment and source identification of petroleum and lead contamination within 

surface and overburden soils at a former marine contracting firm in Weymouth, Massachusetts.  
Submission and review of the report included the Massachusetts District Commission, 
Massachusetts DEP and the Massachusetts Attorney Generals Office. 

 
 Implemented a groundwater recovery system to address a release of No. 2 heating oil from an 

above-ground storage tank within a "zone of influence" of a private drinking water supply.  Site 
work included identifying contaminant migration pathways and evaluating potential remedial 
alternatives. 

 
 Co-Project Manager responsible for the geologic portion of environmental assessment of a former 

coal gasification plant in Nantucket Massachusetts.  Site conditions were evaluated utilizing 



 

Brian F. Klingler, P.G., LSP (continued) 

 

 

Coneco Engineers & Scientists, Incorporated 

geophysical and geologic assessment techniques for research on RI/FS plan. Project included 
presentation of results to utility research department. 

 
 Characterized surface deposits of wastewater sludge at a Central Massachusetts Landfill.  Fate 

and transport issues involved PCBs, VOCs, semi-VOCs, and RCRA-13 metals contamination.  
The study involved evaluation of impacts to the Site’s overburden and bedrock aquifers. 

 
 Provide LSP services, regulatory oversight, client relations, and project management for an 

ongoing project associated with identified PCB and lead contamination in soil at a scrap metal 
recycling facility located in New Bedford, Massachusetts.  Project team has worked to determine 
the nature and delineate the extent of the contamination and recommend appropriate, cost-
effective remedial options.  Provided management and coordination for on-site lead fixation 
treatment and subsequent disposal of lead and PCB-impacted soils.  The project is being 
conducted in accordance with the Toxics Substances Control Act (TSCA) and Massachusetts 
regulations.  Remediation and disposal of PCB-impacted media was coordinated and approved by 
EPA Region I.  The property is classified as a Tier II Disposal Site by the Massachusetts DEP.  
Additional remedial options, such as engineered barriers and the implementation of an Activity 
and Use Limitation (AUL), are currently being discussed with the client to achieve regulatory 
closure.   

 
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS, CREDENTIALS & CERTIFICATIONS: 

Post Graduate Course Work in Hazardous Materials Management, Department of Civil Engineering, 
Tufts University, Medford, Massachusetts. 
OSHA 40-Hour Health and Safety Training for Work on Hazardous Wastes Sites:  1989 (updates 
1990 through 2016) 
Asbestos Inspection Training Course, Institution for Environmental Education, Inc. Woburn, 
Massachusetts:  1993 (AHERA Certification) 
Environmental Project Management (The Centre for Environmental Management) Tufts University, 
June 1991. 
Microbial Processes in the Degradation of Groundwater Contaminants, NGWA:  August 1992 
Licensed Site Professional-State of Massachusetts (8493) 
Certified Professional Geologist - State of Tennessee (TN3991) 



Marc E. Brochu, P.G., LSP                                      Senior Project Manager 

 
EDUCATION: 
 
Tufts University, Medford, Massachusetts 
Bachelor of Science, Geology, 1996 
 
Indiana University, Cardwell, Montana  
Geology Field Camp, 1996 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: 

Coneco Engineers and Scientists       2012 - Present 
Senior Project Manager 
Lessard Environmental, Inc.            1999 - 2012 
Senior Project Manager 
Corporate Environmental Advisors, Inc.          1996 - 1999 
Hydrogeologist 
 
EXPERIENCE SUMMARY: 

Mr. Brochu is a geologist and environmental scientist with twenty (20) years of experience in the 
environmental consulting industry and with more than twelve years of experience as a project manager 
and client manager.  He has extensive experience managing environmental assessment, remediation, and 
regulatory compliance projects at commercial, industrial, and residential properties throughout New 
England.  Mr. Brochu has been a Licensed Site Professional in Massachusetts since 2008 and is also a 
licensed Professional Geologist.  He specializes in managing compliance with state and federal 
environmental regulations and programs.  Mr. Brochu is experienced in the design and management of 
environmental site investigations and contaminant fate and transport characterization projects, and has 
overseen numerous due diligence and regulatory investigations for properties with complex historical 
uses and release histories.  Mr. Brochu is experienced in the selection, design, and implementation of 
remediation programs for oil and hazardous material release sites, including soil excavation, vapor and 
groundwater recovery and treatment systems, and in-situ remedial additive treatment technologies.  He 
has managed numerous emergency spill response projects and projects involving indoor air and drinking 
water contamination.  Mr. Brochu has extensive regulatory report preparation and peer review experience, 
both under the Massachusetts Contingency Plan and other New England state regulations.  He is well 
versed in conducting and preparing site-specific human health and environmental risk characterizations.  
Mr. Brochu has worked with a wide range of clients for the resolution of environmental issues including 
municipalities, commercial and industrial property owners, petroleum distributors and transporters, 
insurance companies, homeowners, and attorneys. 
 
REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS: 

 Site Investigation and Remedial Action Plan, Industrial Property Redevelopment, North Providence, 
Rhode Island:  Designed and managed a Phase II subsurface investigation, including vapor intrusion 
pathway evaluation, to assess areas of concern at an historical textile mill proposed for redevelopment 
as residential apartment; Developed a Remedial Action Work Plan, approved by RIDEM, to address 
petroleum and metals contamination in soil and potential vapor intrusion pathways identified during 
the Phase II investigation. 

 
 Gasoline Station Remediation Projects, Southeastern, Massachusetts:  Managed a portfolio of 

gasoline station environmental assessment and remediation projects for a Massachusetts independent 
petroleum distributor;  Conducted comprehensive investigations for plume delineation, contaminant 
fate and transport modeling, vapor intrusion pathway assessment, and evaluation of private drinking 
water well impacts;  Selected remedial alternatives and provided oversight of the design, installation, 



 

Marc E. Brochu, P.G., LS.P (continued) 

 

 

Coneco Engineers & Scientists, Incorporated 
 
 

operation and regulatory compliance for remedial programs including soil vapor extraction and air 
sparging systems, groundwater pump and treat systems, point-of entry drinking water well filtration 
systems, and  in-situ chemical oxidation and bio-remediation;  Managed public involvement relations 
with affected property owners and worked with regulators to ensure regulatory compliance and to 
secure applicable state and municipal permits;  Prepared and managed environmental project budgets 
and regulatory report submittals for Immediate Response Action and Comprehensive Response 
Action project phases.   

 
 Dry Cleaner Chlorinated Solvent Release, Quincy, Massachusetts:  Conducted Imminent Hazard 

Evaluation and completed a Phase II Comprehensive Site Assessment for a chlorinated solvent 
release from a dry-cleaner within a multi-tenant commercial building;  Secured property access 
agreements with owners of adjacent affected properties for collection of soil vapor and indoor air 
samples, as well as installation of test borings and monitoring wells for plume delineation;  
Completed a MCP Method 3 human health risk characterization in support of the Phase II and 
selected comprehensive response actions to address indoor air and source area conditions. 

 
 Industrial Mill Assessment and Remediation, Webster, Massachusetts:  Designed and managed 

Phase I and Phase II due diligence site investigations for an impending property transaction; 
Identified a reportable release condition associated with non-aqueous phase liquid and petroleum 
contamination in soil from historical site operations;  Planned, managed and provided oversight for 
excavation and off-Site disposal of 1,000 cubic yards of impacted soil along with recovery, on-site 
treatment and discharge of groundwater under an EPA permit;  Conducted post-remediation 
assessment, including a sediment and surface water investigation, and achieved regulatory closure for 
the release within the aggressive time table established by the client.   

 
 Residential Fuel Oil Release, Litigation Support Services, Sutton, Massachusetts: Provided 

oversight for a UST removal from a residential property;  Managed Immediate Response Actions 
including soil excavation and dewatering adjacent to and beneath the residence upon identification of 
a reportable release from the UST;  Following excavation, designed and implemented in-situ chemical 
oxidation program to address residual fuel oil impacts to soil and groundwater; Conducted a detailed 
hydraulic conductivity investigation including bedrock well installations, slug testing and radio-
carbon dating techniques to evaluate potential future impacts to on-site and neighboring drinking 
water supply wells;  Achieved regulatory closure for the release and subsequently provided testimony 
in support of homeowner litigation against the fuel oil supplier. 

 
 AAI Phase I Investigations, Multiple Commercial Properties, Maine:  Managed project team for 

completion of AAI Phase I Environmental Site Assessments for a portfolio of eleven commercial 
properties in Maine including gasoline stations and bulk petroleum storage facilities;  Completed 
Phase I investigations within the aggressive time table established by the lender for the property 
transactions. 

 
 Activity and Use Limitation, Commercial Property, Chelsea, Massachusetts:  Managed site 

investigation activities to determine nature and extent of contamination associated with historical fill 
material on an industrial property;  Evaluated and selected most cost effective options for off-site 
management of soil excavated under a RAM performed in conjunction with redevelopment of the 
property;  Completed a site-specific risk characterization and prepared and recorded an Activity and 
Use Limitation to achieve regulatory closure for the property. 



 

Marc E. Brochu, P.G., LS.P (continued) 

 

 

Coneco Engineers & Scientists, Incorporated 
 
 

 
 Downgradient Property Status, Commercial Property, Waltham, Massachusetts:  Conducted 

historical research and performed site investigation activities to identify the source of chlorinated 
VOC impacts in groundwater and indoor air on the client’s multi-tenant residential and commercial 
property;  Prepared and filed a Downgradient Property Status for the client documenting an off-Site 
source of the contaminant impacts on the Site property; Manage on-going soil gas and indoor air 
monitoring on the property for evaluation of potential Imminent Hazard or other IRA conditions. 

 
 Soil Reclamation Reuse Oversight, Uxbridge, Massachusetts:  Manage and oversee approvals for 

shipment of non-MCP regulated soil from construction projects throughout Massachusetts and 
Connecticut to a former quarry for reclamation reuse to establish a rare wildlife habitat at the quarry 
location.  Maintain and update the Soil Management Plan for the project in accordance with DEP 
“similar soils” guidance and policies; Review soil application packages from contractors and approve 
or deny packages based on soil management plan criteria; Maintain a soil shipment database and issue 
periodic summary reports for stakeholders. 

 
 Environmental Peer Review, EPA Superfund Remediation Project:  Conducted peer review of EPA 

contractor scopes of work and invoicing on behalf of a major utility provider for a $1 million 
Superfund asbestos site remediation project; Identified items for potential invoicing adjustments and 
provided a detailed summary of findings with recommendations for an alternative reduced payment 
for the client. 

 
 Electrical Substation In-Situ Remediation, Newport, Rhode Island:  Developed and implemented 

Remedial Action Work Plan, approved by RIDEM, for in-situ chemical oxidation of impacted soil 
and groundwater associated with a transformer release within an electrical substation; Provided 
oversight and monitoring of chemical oxidation applications and achieved remediation goals for 
contaminant reduction within the scope and time frame of the original work plan. 

 
OTHER RELEVANT PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Achieve Renewable Energy, LLC (subsidiary of Lessard Environmental)       2009 - 2012 
Senior Project Manager 
 
 Project manager for design, permitting, and construction of residential and commercial solar 

photovoltaic (PV) systems ranging in size from 2 kilowatts to 200 kilowatts, with project budgets up 
to $1 million; 
 

CERTIFICATIONS: 

Massachusetts Toxic Use Reduction Planner Certification Course, 2009 
Massachusetts Licensed Site Professional (2008 - Present) 
Professional Geologist, State of Tennessee (2008 - Present) 
Massachusetts Toxic Use Reduction Planner (2009 - 2013) 
OSHA Hazardous Waste Operations Training (40 hrs): 1997  
OSHA Hazardous Waste Operations Training Update (Current) 



Jonathan E. Novak, E.I.T. Principal Engineer 

 

 

Coneco Engineers & Scientists, Incorporated 

EDUCATION: 

 
University of Massachusetts – Dartmouth, Dartmouth, Massachusetts 

Bachelor of Science, Civil Engineering, December 2003 

University of Massachusetts – Lowell, Lowell, Massachusetts 

Land Surveying Certificate, 2002 

 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: 

 
Coneco Engineers & Scientists, Inc. 2011– Present 

Principal Engineer  

Advanced Engineering Group, P.C. 2010-2011 

Project Engineer  

Coler & Colantonio, Inc. 2007-2010 

Project Engineer  

JC Engineering 2004-2007 

Project Engineer & Head of Survey Department  

M.DeMatteo Construction Co. 2000-2001 

Quality Control Engineer  

 

Mr. Novak has over 16 years of experience in the fields of civil engineering and construction 

management.  He has served as a project manager and project engineer on numerous residential, 

commercial, telecommunications, and municipal projects.  He is a Certified Soil Evaluator in the state 

of Massachusetts.  Mr. Novak’s primary area of expertise is in land development, permitting, and 

construction oversight. 

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS: 

 Avon Fire Station, Avon, Massachusetts – Senior Engineer responsible for staff oversite of site 

hydraulic analysis, stormwater system design, and permitting plan preparation including site 

layout, grading, and septic modifications for the expansion of an existing Fire Station. 

 Onset Fire District Headquarters, Wareham, Massachusetts – Senior Engineer responsible for 

staff oversite of the site hydraulic analysis, stormwater system design, and permitting plan 

preparation including site parking and access layout, utility design, and grading for a new fire 

station.  Additionally, site soil permeability evaluation and town permitting hearings were 

performed. 

 Melrose 4 Building Rehabilitation, Melrose, Massachusetts – Senior Engineer responsible for 

site assessment and building rehabilitation plans for structural reinforcement and conversion of an 

existing substation building. 

 Convenient MD, Falmouth, Massachusetts – Senior Engineer responsible for design and 

permitting for the redevelopment of a gas station into an urgent care center with associated 

parking, landscaping, underground utilities, grading, and drainage.  Assisted in permitting plan 

set drafting and design of site layout, utilities, roadway, grading, and drainage.   

 HarborOne Bank, Stoughton, Massachusetts – Senior Engineer assisted in the design and 

permitting for the redevelopment of a parking lot into a bank with associated parking, 

landscaping, underground utilities, grading, and drainage.  



Jonathan E. Novak, E.I.T. (continued) 

  

 

Coneco Engineers, Scientists & Surveyors 

 Spring Valley Country Club – The Cape Club Townhouses, Sharon, Massachusetts – Senior 

Engineer responsible for the design and permitting of 52 townhouse units on an existing golf 

course situated on a 202-acre lot.  Completed supporting work for the permitting plan set 

including full design of site utilities, roadway, grading and drainage. 

 1101 Turnpike Street Culvert and Headwall Repair Project, North Andover, Massachusetts – 

Senior Engineer for the preparation of a design drawings and reports for the slip line culvert and 

headwall repairs, permitting support, and performing/overseeing construction and environmental 

inspections. 

 National Grid Michael Avenue Substation Project, Charlestown, New Hampshire – Senior 

Engineer assisted in the preparation of a conceptual site layout and access alternatives analysis 

and preliminary site plan development, including grading, drainage, pre and post development 

hydraulic analysis and stormwater management report preparation, permitting support, EG-303 

erosion control inspections, and construction phase services for this new substation project. 

 Salmon Health and Retirement Community, Medway, Massachusetts – Senior Engineer 

responsible for design and permitting of a 60-acre retirement complex consisting of 58 buildings.  

Responsible for complete permitting plan set drafting, full design of site utilities, roadway, 

grading and drainage.  Proposed site work includes two (2) stream crossings, wetlands 

replication, and Flood Plain Compensatory Storage.    

 Mattress Firm, Salem, New Hampshire – Civil Engineer responsible for site design and 

permitting plans for the redevelopment of a gas station into a retail building with associated 

parking, landscaping, underground utilities, grading, and drainage.   

 Christina Estates, North Attleboro, Massachusetts – Civil Engineer responsible for design and 

permitting of modifications to a 110-lot residential subdivision.  Responsible for complete 

permitting plan set drafting, full design of site utilities, roadway, grading and drainage, and 

individual lot septic designs.   

 Forge Estates of Foxborough, Foxborough, Massachusetts – Civil Engineer responsible for 

design and permitting of an 18-acre, 12 lot Open Space Subdivision.  Responsible for complete 

permitting plan set drafting, full design of site utilities, roadway, grading and drainage.  Proposed 

site work includes the implementation of several Low Impact Development (LID) Best 

Management Practices (BMPs), such as vegetated swales and rain garden/bio-retention areas. 

 Webster Village, Hanover, Massachusetts – Civil Engineer responsible for design and permitting 

of a 76-unit apartment complex.  Responsible for complete permitting plan set drafting, full 

design of site utilities, building, locations, roadway, grading and drainage. 

 Bella Estates, Raynham, Massachusetts – Civil Engineer responsible for design and permitting of 

modifications to a 10 building, 50-unit condominium development.  Responsible for permitting 

plan set drafting, full design of site utilities, building locations, roadway, grading and drainage. 

 National Grid Dupont Substation Rehabilitation Project, Brockton, Massachusetts – Civil 

Engineer responsible sewer and water connections to the municipal utilities and permitting plan 

preparation relative to the permitting of this electrical substation rehabilitation project.  Mr. 

Novak represented Coneco in front of the City Technical Review Board and City Planning Board. 

 National Grid Middle Road Substation No. 275 Construction Phase Services, West 

Amesbury, Massachusetts – Civil Engineer responsible for the preparation of the site restoration, 

drainage cutoff, and slope stability plans for this electrical substation. 



Jonathan E. Novak, E.I.T. (continued) 

  

 

Coneco Engineers, Scientists & Surveyors 

 Department of Conservation and Recreation, Cambridge, Massachusetts – Civil engineer 

responsible for site and utility layout for DCR facility expansion and renovation.  Mr. Novak was 

involved in all aspects of the design and permitting of this project. 

 Progressive Insurance Regional Claims Office, Westwood, Massachusetts – Civil Engineer 

assisted in preparing site permitting plans, for the redevelopment of a contaminated 4-acre site 

into a 22,000-sf office building with associated parking, landscaping, underground utilities, 

grading, and drainage.  Responsible for earthwork and construction calculations for the site.  

Proposed site work includes the implementation of several Low Impact Development (LID) Best 

Management Practices (BMPs), such as a vegetated filter strip, a vegetated swale, and a rain 

garden/bioretention area, in previously developed Riverfront Areas. 

 Elm Street Estates, Bridgewater, Massachusetts – Civil engineer assisted in this 20-unit 40B 

residential project complete permitting plan set drafting, full design of site utilities, roadway, 

grading and drainage.  Responsible for earthwork calculations and construction cost estimates. 

 Welsch Woods Residential Development, Easton, Massachusetts - Civil engineer assisted in the 

development and permitting of construction drawings for the site design of a 26-unit residential 

development, including the design of the roadway, site parking, building locations, grading, 

stormwater management, septic system, utilities and lighting.  This project is being permitted as a 

Comprehensive Permit under Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40B. 

 Plymouth Rock Studios, Plymouth, Massachusetts – Lead Civil Designer for a 240-acre 

multiuse facility including movie studio, commercial, and educational facilities.  Mr. Novak was 

responsible for site grading, utility, drainage, and sewage disposal design.  Other responsibilities 

included internal coordination of civil design team, Town meeting preparation, earthwork 

calculations, and cost estimates.   

 Dillon McAnespie Park, Dracut, Massachusetts – This project consisted of the development of 

an ADA-accessible municipal/public athletic complex, which included a natural-grass baseball 

fields, three basketball courts, a tennis court, a concession/storage building, a covered picnic area, 

extensive irrigation, U-12 playground, drainage, parking.  Mr. Novak was involved with the 

entire project, including the proposal submittal, drainage and irrigation design, athletic 

component layout, local hearings and permits, and public bid process.  He also was responsible 

for construction oversight, including submittal review, onsite inspections, in field adjustments, 

and onsite construction meetings. 

 Stow Community Park, Stow, Massachusetts – This project consisted of the development of a 

13-acre, ADA-accessible municipal/public athletic complex, which included two natural-grass 

baseball fields, two basketball courts, two tennis courts, a field house, a covered picnic area, 

extensive irrigation, playground area, and porous/impervious parking.  Mr. Novak was involved 

with the entire project, including the proposal submittal, drainage and irrigation design, athletic 

component layout, local hearings and permits, and public bid process.  He also was responsible 

for construction oversight, including submittal review, onsite inspections, in field adjustments, 

and onsite construction meetings. 

 Cranston Stadium, Cranston, Rhode Island – This project consisted of the renovation and 

upgrade of an existing natural turf field to an artificial surface.  Mr. Novak was involved with all 

aspects of the design, permitting, bid, and construction process.  Including grading and drainage 

design, specifications, submittal review, and construction meetings and inspections. 

 TTB Kelley, Camp Edwards, Massachusetts – The base is named in honor of Sgt. Michael J. 

Kelley of Scituate, Mass. Kelley, a member of E Battery (Target Acquisition) of the 101st Field 

Artillery, was killed in action in Afghanistan on June 8, 2005.  Lead civil engineer responsible for 



Jonathan E. Novak, E.I.T. (continued) 

  

 

Coneco Engineers, Scientists & Surveyors 

design of 1200 man training facility for the National Guard.  This site design consisted of site 

grading, drainage, utility design, sewer and pump station design.  Created specifications and cost 

estimates for bid process.  Mr. Novak was the onsite engineer and clerk of the works for the entire 

45-day construction period.  Responsible for in field modifications, construction inspections, 

submittal review, daily construction reporting and final site review/approval.   

 MOUT Calero, Camp Edwards, Massachusetts – The site is named in honor of Maj. Jeffrey R. 

Calero of Queens Village, N.Y. Calero, a member of Operational Detachment Alpha 2132, C 

Company, 1st Battalion, 20th Special Forces Group (Airborne), was killed in action in 

Afghanistan on October 29, 2007.  Lead civil engineer for the project consisting of a training 

facility for military personnel, including site grading, locations for 48 buildings, and associated 

lighting and utilities.   

 Charge Pond Estates, Wareham, Massachusetts – Lead civil engineer for the project consisting 

of an 8-lot residential subdivision including the design of the roadway, building locations, 

grading, stormwater management, septic system, utilities and lighting 

 Fellowship circle, Wareham, Massachusetts – Lead civil engineer for the project consisting of a 

10-lot residential subdivision including the design of the roadway, building locations, grading, 

stormwater management, septic system, utilities and lighting.    

 Solar Site Development, Tennessee – Lead civil engineer responsible for the site layout and 

design of both ground mounted and roof mounted solar arrays.  Sites ranged in size from 

residential to agricultural use.   

 Telecommunication Sites, Rhode Island, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Maine – Designed 

and permitted telecommunications sites ranging from raw land to retrofitted locations for all 

major carriers.  Oversaw bid process to final completion of sites.  Designed, permitted, and 

oversaw construction for safety modifications to existing telecommunication sites.  Sites were 

located throughout the majority of New England 

 Swansea Desalinization Plant, Swansea, Massachusetts – This project consisted of the 

connection of the Swansea desalinization facility to the Taunton River.  Mr. Novak was involved 

with the 2.5-mile road survey from the Taunton River to the proposed desalinization site for the 

intake & return lines, as well as the site survey for the desalinization plant.  River soundings and a 

bathymetric survey were performed as a part of this project.   

 Single Family Septic Systems, Massachusetts – Designed, permitted and performed As-Built 

survey and plans for multiple single-family septic systems throughout Southeastern 

Massachusetts. 

 Central Artery/Tunnel Project, Boston, Massachusetts – Responsible for concrete testing for all 

concrete pours during construction of tunnel sections.  Inspection of all reinforcing bar and form 

work prior to all concrete work onsite.  Monitored all pours after completion for proper 

temperature & curing rates.   

 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS, CREDENTIALS & CERTIFICATIONS: 

Engineer in Training 

Massachusetts Certified Soil Evaluator, SE 13166 

OSHA Hazardous Materials “40 Hour” Course Certification – 2009 

OSHA Hazardous Materials “8 Hour Refresher” Course – 2019 

OSHA Construction Safety Training “10 Hour” Course  

Electrical Hazard Awareness Training – 2011 

 



Jonathan E. Novak, E.I.T. (continued) 

  

 

Coneco Engineers, Scientists & Surveyors 

American Society of Civil Engineers, Associate Member 

Boston Society of Civil Engineers & Surveyors, Member  

 



DRI	352-M4	MVRHS	Athletic	Fields	

Preliminary	staff	questions	

April	2,	2020	

LOGISTICS	
What	role	is	Daedalus	still	playing?		
Has	the	high	school	committed	to	more	than	phase	1	of	the	project?		
Has	the	school	rescinded	its	10-year	grass	fields	policy	(adopted	in	2018)?	
Will	CPA	funds	be	used	for	phase	one	of	the	project?		

USE	
Would	there	be	user	fees	for	the	synthetic	field?	
What	rules	would	exist	for	users	of	the	track	and	field	and	the	synthetic	turf	field	facility?	
Could	this	project	lead	to	an	increase	in	use	of	the	fields?		

MAINTENANCE	
What	is	the	high	school’s	plan	for	yearly	maintenance	of	the	natural	and	synthetic	fields?	
Does	the	school	plan	to	adopt	the	maintenance	program	recommended	by	Huntress?		
Would	a	new	position	need	to	be	created	at	the	high	school	to	handle	scheduling	and	
maintenance	oversight	of	the	fields?		

MVC STAFF QUESTIONS



 

 
DRI # 691 – Eversource Energy Storage System in Oak Bluffs 

Staff Report 2019-08-01 

1 

BOX 1447, OAK BLUFFS, MASSACHUSETTS, 02557, 508-693-3453,  
FAX 508-693-7894 INFO@MVCOMMISSION.ORG WWW.MVCOMMISSION.ORG  

Martha's Vineyard Commission    
DRI #352-M4 – MVRHS Athletic Fields 
MVC Staff Report – 2020-03-25  DRAFT 

  
1 DESCRIPTION 
1.2 Applicant: Matt D’Andrea, Martha’s Vineyard Public Schools Superintendent  
1.3 Project Location: Martha’s Vineyard Regional High School, 11 Edgartown-Vineyard Haven Road, 

Oak Bluffs, MA 02557 
1.4 Proposal: Construct a new 400-meter, eight-lane running track; one multi-purpose synthetic turf 

field, 1,000-seat grandstand with pressbox; sports lighting; 4,800-square-foot fieldhouse; track 
and field equipment storage shed; walkways and associated site improvements; and renovate 
one existing natural grass field. 

1.5 Zoning: Residential (R3) 
1.6 Local Permits: Oak Bluffs Planning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals special permits for sports 

lighting and site plan review; possible special permit from Oak Bluffs Planning Board for 
construction in Zone 2 (Water Resources Protection Overlay District); building permits for 
grandstands, sports lighting, scoreboard, field house and storage buildings; Oak Bluffs Board of 
Health permit for septic holding tank and sewer connection; MVC DRI permit 

1.7 Surrounding Land Uses: R3 Residential 
1.8 Location: The site is just east of a Water Resources Protection Overlay District, and is within both 

the Lagoon and Sengekontacket Pond watersheds. A portion along the north border is in the 
Island Roads District. Single-family developments abut the property to the west, and a strip of 
forested land abuts to the east. Other community and institutional buildings, including the YMCA 
and Martha’s Vineyard Community Services, are located across Edgartown-Vineyard Haven Road. 
About 46 acres of the high school campus are used for athletic use. 

1.9 Project History: The MVC first reviewed the Martha’s Vineyard Regional High School in 1979, 
approving its plan for a 21,600-square-foot addition for 600 students (DRI 109). The high school 
returned for DRI 352 in 1992, with a proposed 81,000-square-foot addition that the MVC 
approved with conditions; and in 1995 for the addition of the running track with associated 
track-and-field areas and a fence (modification review DRI 352-M). In 2006–2007, the MV Sharks 
built a new baseball field on the high school campus, which should have been referred for a 
modification review but was not. In 2013, the Sharks added lighting to the baseball field and that 
project was later referred to the MVC as DRI 352-M2. The MVC voted not to accept the referral, 
since the lights were already in place. In June 2016, the MVC voted not to accept the referral of a 
proposal by Vineyard Baseball Inc. to construct a 28’ x 10’ bathroom building near the Sharks 
field.   
 
Plans to renovate the high school playing fields have evolved since 2015, when MVRHS 
commissioned a study that highlighted the urgency of replacing its running track, and voted to 
move forward on a three-phase plan by the community group MV@Play. The plan involved 
upgrading all the playing facilities, beginning with a new track and synthetic field, stadium 



 

 
DRI # 691 – Eversource Energy Storage System in Oak Bluffs 

Staff Report 2019-08-01 

2 

seating for 500 people, sports lighting and storage facilities. MV@Play had proposed a public-
private partnership with the school, and the upgrades were to be funded mostly by donations. 
MV@Play hired Gale Associates as the designer and general contractor. In response to public 
concern, the original proposal for the synthetic field was amended to specify a plant-based infill, 
rather than crumb rubber. MV@Play projected 2,339 events per year for the fields, accounting 
for both high school and community use. The school district committee signed a licensing 
agreement with MV@Play, and voted to support phase one of the project. The Chilmark and 
West Tisbury selectmen, along with MV@Play, later referred the project to the MVC.   

 
Another community group, Vineyarders for Grass Fields, was established during that period and 
began raising money to support the improved maintenance of existing fields at the high school.  
 
The MVC Land Use Planning Committee met with the high school in February 2016, and a public 
hearing was set to begin that April. Concerns focused mostly on the synthetic field, including the 
health and environmental safety of turf products and the long-term cost of maintenance and 
replacement. (The field surface was expected to be replaced every 10–13 years at a cost of about 
$500,000.) Other concerns focused on traffic, since the proposed lighting would allow for more 
evening games in the summer. Vineyarders for Grass Fields later presented the high school with 
an alternative plan based on natural grass maintenance for 17 school fields across the Island, and 
the MV@Play proposal (along with the MVC hearing) was put on hold. MV@Play offered to 
provide Vineyarders for Grass Fields with the plans developed by Gale Associates, but later 
learned that was not possible since Gale Associates owned the plans. Vineyarders for Grass fields 
was later renamed the Field Fund. The school adopted a 10-year grass fields policy for its playing 
fields, but a licensing agreement between the Field Fund and the high school fell apart when the 
two parties could not agree on the terms. As a short-term fix, the high school voted to repave the 
running track, which would allow for another 3–4 years of use. The Field Fund went on to 
develop grass maintenance programs for the other schools on the Vineyard.  
 
In 2018, the high school decided to move forward on its own, hiring Daedalus Projects as a 
consultant and agreeing to consider both synthetic and natural turf fields at the school. Also in 
2018, the school hired Huntress Associates, which presented a master plan with three options for 
renovating the athletic facilities. The plan recommended at least one synthetic field, and a grass 
maintenance program for the others. The high school committee voted in December 2018 to 
pursue “Option B,” with phase 1 now before the MVC. Island towns were given 45 days to hold 
special town meetings to approve the high school’s use of excess and deficiency (E and D) funds 
to develop construction plans to present to the MVC. Edgartown, Tisbury and Oak Bluffs decided 
not to hold special town meetings, in effect approving the expenditure, while West Tisbury and 
Aquinnah approved the spending and Chilmark voted against it. 
 
In January 2020, the high school sent its plans to the Oak Bluffs Planning Board, which later 
referred the project to the MVC. 
 

1.10 Project Summary: The athletic campus currently has nine playing fields (one field with a 400-
meter track, four multi-purpose fields, two baseball diamonds (including the MV Sharks field) and  
 



 

 
DRI # 691 – Eversource Energy Storage System in Oak Bluffs 

Staff Report 2019-08-01 

3 

 
Figure 1: Existing fields and locations. 

 
 

two softball diamonds). (See Figure 1.) The track and field are in poor condition and cannot be 
used for matches. The multi-purpose field used for football games (located at the front of the 
site) includes a 500-seat grandstand, along with a pressbox, lighting, concession stand and other 
features, and the grass is in poor condition. The remaining grass surfaces suffer from varying 
levels of degradation, and much of the seating and access are not ADA compliant. Some of the 
fields also overlap.   

 
Phase one of the athletic fields project includes a new track and 90,000-square foot synthetic 
field, a 1,000-seat grandstand, a pressbox, lighting and associated features, and a 4,800-square-
foot fieldhouse with locker rooms, bathrooms, trainer’s room, concessions, weight room, 
classroom and storage. The existing track and field will be renovated with a 70,000-square-foot 
natural grass, field and the track will be removed. (See Figure 2.) The proposed buildings are 
designed with a barn-like appearance and shingle siding.  
 
The athletic fields master plan as a whole reorganizes the fields so that they do not overlap, and 
relocates the track and field from the rear to the front of the site. In later phases, the high school 
baseball field and the two softball fields would be moved to the southeast corner of the site, with 
the baseball field replacing about three acres of forested land.  
 



 

 
DRI # 691 – Eversource Energy Storage System in Oak Bluffs 

Staff Report 2019-08-01 

4 

  
Figure 2: Option B of Master Plan. 

 
 
Based on the high school’s annual summary of athletic events, Huntress estimates that the 
current fields (excluding the baseball and softball diamonds) receive about 3,500 hours of use 
per year, or about 5,830 hours including MV Soccer United and the MV Adult Leagues. Under the 
higher scenario, each of the five playing fields currently receives an average of about 1,166 hours 
of use per year. Undertaking the master plan using only natural grass would reduce annual usage 
to 972 hours per field. Including one synthetic field would reduce the use of the remaining 
natural grass fields to 891 hours per year; two synthetic fields would reduce that figure to 770 
hours per year, and three would reduce it to 568 hours per year, according to Huntress. The 
Sports Turf Managers Association (STMA) recommends an upper limit of 680–820 hours per year 
for grass fields. Huntress sets that figure at 680 for the Northeast, which has a shorter growing 
season, and recommends up to three synthetic fields for the overall high school project. (See 
Figure 3.) 
 
Huntress recommends the following products for the synthetic field in phase one:  
 

• Greenfields woven turf system – MX Elite (turf): Recyclable; 10-year warranty 
• ACT Global woven turf system – Extreme Turf WX50 (turf): Recyclable; 10-year warranty 
• Brock USA – Power Base YSR Resilient Pad (shock pad): Recyclable; 25-year warranty 
• Brock USA – Brockfill (infill): Plant-based, sustainably harvested from pine trees in 

Georgia; does not require irrigation 



 

 
DRI # 691 – Eversource Energy Storage System in Oak Bluffs 

Staff Report 2019-08-01 

5 

 
The drainage system beneath the synthetic field would last 30–40 years.   

 
Figure 3: Existing and projected use of fields. 

 
 
There are currently no facilities in the US that recycle synthetic turf fields, although Huntress has 
stated that the companies Greenfields and Tencata plan to open a facility in the Netherlands in 
April, and another in Georgia in about two years. The final construction plans by Huntress will 
require the turf manufacturer to remove and recycle the turf carpet at the end of its life, the cost 
of which would be built into the initial bid.  

 
2 ADMINISTRATIVE SUMMARY 
2.1 DRI Referral: Oak Bluffs Planning Board 
2.2 DRI Trigger: The plan triggers several DRI Checklist items, including 1.2 (Modification of a 

Previous DRI), 6.2 (Public Facilities), and 8.6 (DCPC; Island Road District)  
2.3 LUPC:  
2.4 Site visits:  



 

 
DRI # 691 – Eversource Energy Storage System in Oak Bluffs 

Staff Report 2019-08-01 

6 

2.5 Public Hearing:  

3 PLANNING CONCERNS 
Maintenance and long-term costs: Huntress recommends that the high school commit to a 
natural grass maintenance program, including annual funding, that sustains the grass fields for at 
least 20 years. To do so, it recommends that none of the grass fields exceed 680 hours of use per 
year. The company has submitted a draft annual maintenance plan for the grass fields, in the 
form of a proposed scope of work. The company expects to submit a maintenance plan for the 
synthetic field as well. Maintenance of the synthetic field would include grooming the surface 
about once a month with equipment that also picks up metal objects with a large magnet. 
Huntress has stated that sanitizers and other chemicals will not need to be applied as part of the 
turf maintenance program.  
 
Huntress calculates that installing and maintaining a grass field would cost about $525,542 over 
the first 10 years, and $400,840 over the second 10 years ($926,382 total); installing and 
maintaining a synthetic field would cost about $1,059,542 over the first 10 years, and $616,292 
over the second 10 years ($1,675,834 total), which includes the cost of removing and replacing 
the carpet at the end of its life. At the same time, Huntress estimates that the annual cost per 
hour of use in the first 10 years would be $124 for a grass field, versus $77 for a synthetic field. 
The cost-per-hour estimates for the second 10 years are $94 and $45, respectively. The total 
annual maintenance costs including products and labor, according to Huntress, would be $25,085 
for a grass field and $7,454 for a synthetic field. 

 
3.1 Fire safety: The Brockfill infill is made of wood pellets but does not contain chemicals that could 

combust. 
3.2 Noise: Some abutters have expressed concern about noise during games in the early morning 

and late afternoon, and during practice at the track and field.  
3.3 Traffic: The site is accessed primarily from Edgartown-Vineyard Haven Road, which connects to 

Sanderson Road at the high school. The intersection with Sanderson Road is opposite the 
driveway to Martha’s Vineyard Community Services on Edgartown-Vineyard Haven Road. The 
sight lines are adequate from Sanderson Road at the intersection. The estimated total daily trip 
generation for the high school, based on the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) trip 
generation rate for a high school with 600 students is 1,026 daily trips, with 258 in the AM peak 
hour and 78 in the PM peak hour. ITE does not have a football field trip generation rate, but 
there is a trip rate of 71.33 per field for a soccer complex. 

3.4 Parking: The plans reorganize the parking area off Sanderson Ave. to allow busses to pull in and 
out. Twelve of the current parking spots are redistributed, but the total number is the same.  

3.5 Accessibility: The new fields and facilities will be ADA accessible.  
3.6 Usage: The project is not expected to lead to an increase in field usage. However, the seating 

capacity at the primary game field will increase from 500 to 1,000 seats.  
 

4 ENVIRONMENT 
4.1 Forest: The high school property includes state-classified Prime Forest and BioMap2 Core Habitat 

at its southern end, and abuts the Manuel F. Correllus State Forest to the south. 
4.2 Habitat: The area abuts NHESP habitat with some in the project area.  



 

 
DRI # 691 – Eversource Energy Storage System in Oak Bluffs 

Staff Report 2019-08-01 

7 

4.3 Landscaping: The applicant has submitted a preliminary landscape plan.  
4.4 Open Space: The addition of the new buildings will reduce the total amount of open space.   
4.5 Lighting: The new track and field will include sports lighting (two poles on each side), and the 

four existing poles will be removed. The new poles closest to Edgartown-Vineyard Haven Road 
will be 51 feet from the property line. Huntress has submitted illumination summaries showing 
the expected intensity and dissipation of light at the field.  

4.6 Energy/Sustainability:  
4.7 Waste Management: The high school property is connected to the town sewer, but the Oak 

Bluffs Wastewater Facility is at capacity. A septic system is not allowed since the project lies 
within the Sengekontacket Pond watershed. Instead, the plan calls for a series of holding tanks 
that can be pumped out regularly, in addition to a dry sewer line that can be connected later on 
if the town allows it.   

4.8 Water Resources: Concerns about groundwater and runoff have focused on the potential effects 
on drinking water and coastal pond ecosystems. The MVC will engage a third-party toxicologist to 
evaluate the potential effects on human health and the environment.  

4.9 Soils and Groundwater: The soil type is Riverhead sandy loam with 0-3% slopes. This type of soil 
is very deep, and well drained. The water table on the property is likely perched at an elevation 
of 18–25 feet. Groundwater flow on the site is toward the east-southeast. 

4.10 Nitrogen: The site is in the Lagoon and Sengekontacket pond watersheds. The status of both 
watersheds is impaired. The current nitrogen loads exceed the critical nitrogen-loading limits and 
eelgrass coverage in both ponds is decreasing. The site is also in the DEP Zone II area of 
contribution. The property is connected to the Oak Bluffs Wastewater Facility, but unable to 
immediately tie in (see section 4.7 above).   

4.11 Storm water: Stormwater currently flows from the parking area to catch basins that connect to 
infiltration drywells, and from the football field area south toward the other fields. The project 
will result in about 79,500 square feet of new impervious surfaces, and include a series of stone 
trenches, catch basins and underground filtration chambers to manage additional stormwater. 
The applicant has submitted a stormwater report by Marchionda and Associates that includes 
plans for pre- and post-development, peak flow calculations and operations and maintenance. 
The new track and field, and the renovated grass field, will also include drainage systems.   
 

6 ECONOMIC IMPACT 
6.1 There are currently _____ full time/ part time employees. With the proposal there will be _____ 

full time/part time employees. 
6.2 The potential impact on schools is likely to be ______. 
6.3 The potential impact on police and fire departments is ______.   
 
7 SCENIC VALUES 
7.1 Streetscape: The project site is visible from Edgartown-Vineyard Haven Road, but partly 

obscured by trees. The closest proposed sports lighting would stand 51 feet from the property 
line along Edgartown-Vineyard Haven Road.  

7.2 Building Massing: The proposed fieldhouse is 4,800 square feet with lower and ground levels, 
and a height of 22’ 4” at the ridge. The ground floor dimensions are 26’ by 117.4’.  

7.3 Architectural Detailing: See plans.  
 



 

 
DRI # 691 – Eversource Energy Storage System in Oak Bluffs 

Staff Report 2019-08-01 

8 

 
8 LOCAL IMPACT/ABUTTERS 

See sections on noise, lighting and traffic above.  
 
9 CORRESPONDENCE 
9.1 Town Officials: 
9.2 Island Organizations: 
9.3 Public: Seventy-two emails and letters have been received as of March 25, 2020, with 55 in 

support of the project, 14 opposed, and three expressing concern. A separate hardcopy packet 
with all letters will be compiled for the LUPC.  
 


	OBPB Packet 04 09 20-Huntress-FOIA-request.pdf
	Marthas Vineyard High School Fields Assessment Proposal REV 4-1-2020.pdf
	1.0 Introduction
	1.1 About Coneco

	2.0 Proposed Scope of Services
	Task 1: Project Kickoff Meeting
	Task 2: Review Available Information and Issues of Concern
	Task 3: Project Assessment
	Task 4: Public Meetings

	3.0 Project Schedule
	4.0 Project Base Budget

	HAI-MVRHS-MVC Questions 040320-2.pdf
	HAI-MVRHS-MVC Questions 040120 DRAFT.pdf
	HAI-MVRHS-MVC Questions 033020 DRAFT.pdf
	HAI-MVRHS-MVC Questions 033020
	Response: Stormwater that enters the limits of the synthetic turf field would have to pass through two layers of a needle-punched nonwoven geotextile filter fabric (Mirafi® 140N) before being able to enter the native soil. The apparent opening size of...

	321823.33TrackSurface
	MIrafi - TDS_140N
	Turf Signs







